Health and Wellbeing Board

Date: Wednesday 19 July 2023
Time: 1.00 pm
Venue: Committee Room 2, Shire Hall

Membership

Councillor Margaret Bell (Chair)
Councillor Sue Markham

Councillor Jerry Roodhouse
Councillor Isobel Seccombe OBE
Councillor Liz Coles (SDC)
Councillor Adam Daly (RBC)
Councillor Julian Gutteridge (N&BBC)
Councillor Katie Hunt (WDC)
Councillor Sandra Smith (NWBC)

Warwickshire County Council Officers: Shade Agboola and Nigel Minns

Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care Board: Danielle Oum

Provider Representatives: Russell Hardy (South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust and
George Eliot Hospital NHS Trust), Dame Stella Manzie (University Hospitals Coventry &
Warwickshire), Dianne Whitfield (Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust)
Healthwatch Warwickshire: Elizabeth Hancock / Chris Bain

NHS England: Rebecca Farmer

Police and Crime Commissioner: Emma Daniell (Deputy PCC)

ltems on the agenda: -

1. General

(1) Apologies

(2) Members' Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary
Interests

(3) Chair's Announcements



Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025 5-74
A report requesting approval of the final version of the Better Care

Fund Plan for 2023-25 submitted to NHS England on 28 June 2023;

along with a request to note the Better Care Fund Policy Framework

and Planning Requirements for 2023/25.

Monica Fogarty

Chief Executive
Warwickshire County Council
Shire Hall, Warwick

Health and Wellbeing Board Page 2 éﬁ]w«wickshirg
Wednesday 19 July 2023 County Council



To download papers for this meeting scan here with your camera

Disclaimers

Webcasting and permission to be filmed

Please note that this meeting will be filmed for live broadcast on the internet and can be viewed on
line at warwickshire.public-i.tv. Generally, the public gallery is not filmed, but by entering the
meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to being filmed. All recording
will be undertaken in accordance with the Council's Standing Orders.

Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of their
election of appointment to the Council. Any changes to matters registered or new matters that
require to be registered must be notified to the Monitoring Officer as soon as practicable after they
arise.

A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in which they have a disclosable pecuniary
interest must (unless they have a dispensation):

* Declare the interest if they have not already registered it

* Not participate in any discussion or vote

* Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with

+ Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of
the meeting

Non-pecuniary interests relevant to the agenda should be declared at the commencement of the
meeting.

The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1

Public Speaking

Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter within
the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If you wish to
speak please notify Democratic Services in writing at least two working days before the meeting.
You should give your name and address and the subject upon which you wish to speak. Full details
of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s Standing Orders.

COVID-19 Pandemic

Any member or officer of the Council or any person attending this meeting must inform Democratic
Services if within a week of the meeting they discover they have COVID-19 or have been in close
proximity to anyone found to have COVID-19.

Health and Wellbeing Board Page 3 ﬁWtJrWickshire
Wednesday 19 July 2023 County Council


https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 8 Agenda Item 2

Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee

19 July 2023

Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025

Recommendations

That the Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee:

1) Notes the Better Care Fund Policy Framework and Planning
Requirements for 2023/25;

2) Notes that the Better Care Fund Narrative Plan and Planning Template for
2023-25 contributes to the wider Health and Wellbeing Board’s prevention
priorities as well meeting the BCF national conditions; and

3) Approves the final version of the Better Care Fund Plan for 2023-25, in
line with the recommendation and delegation of the HWBB on 23
September 2015, submitted to NHS England on the 28" June 2023.

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a programme spanning both local government
and the NHS which seeks to join-up health and care services, so that people
can manage their own health and wellbeing and live independently in their
communities for as long as possible.

Better Care Fund Policy Framework 2023-25

1.2  Earlier in the year, Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) were advised that
BCF policy and planning requirements would be published and that similar to
the previous year, HWBs would be required to submit their BCF Plans to NHS
England for approval.

1.2  The Better Care Fund 2023-25 Planning Requirements published on 4t April
2023, set out the template for Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) to submit
a plan for two years for approval.

1.3  For 2023-25, BCF plans consist of:

* A narrative plan

* A completed BCF planning template, including:
— Planned expenditure from BCF sources.
— Confirmation that national conditions of the fund are met, as well as

specific conditions attached to individual funding streams.

— Ambitions and plans for performance against BCF national metrics.
— Any additional contributions to BCF section 75 agreements.

Page 5



Page 2 of 8

— Intermediate Care and short-term capacity and demand plan.

1.4  The deadline for submission of the BCF plan to NHS England was 28™" June
2023. Following approval by the ICB and the Council, the plan was submitted
by the deadline. Due to the tight timescales required for preparation and
approval of the plan, permission has been obtained from NHS England for
Cabinet (13" July) and HWBB (19t July) approval to follow submission. The
HWBB is now requested to approve the final version of the plan submitted to
NHS England. Any subsequent changes required as a result of consideration
by the Cabinet and/or HWBB would result in the BCF plan being re-submitted.

National Conditions

1.5 The Better Care Fund Policy Statement for 2023-25 provides continuity to
previous years of the programme. The policy framework outlines the four
national conditions:

1. Ajointly agreed plan between local health and social care
commissioners and signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board - That
a BCF Plan, covering all mandatory funding contributions has been
agreed by Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) areas and minimum
contributions (specified in the BCF allocations and grant determinations)
are pooled in a section 75 agreement (an agreement made under
section 75 of the NHS Act 2006) by the constituent local authorities
(LAs) and Integrated Care Boards (ICBs).

2. Implementing BCF Policy Objective 1: enabling people to stay well, safe
and independent at home for longer.

3. Implementing BCF Policy Objective 2: providing the right care in the right
place at the right time

4. Maintaining the NHS:

a. contribution to adult social care in line with the uplift to the NHS
minimum contribution - The contribution to social care from the
Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care Board via the BCF is
agreed and meets or exceeds the minimum expectation. For
Warwickshire the minimum contribution is:

e £16.138m in 2023/24
e £17.051m in 2024/25.

b. investment in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services - That a
specific proportion of the area’s allocation is invested in NHS
commissioned out-of-hospital services, while supporting
integration plans. For Warwickshire the minimum expenditure is:

e £12.897m in 2023/24
e £13.627m in 2024/25

1.6  The Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care Board and the local authority

are required to confirm compliance with the above conditions to the Health and
Wellbeing Board. Compliance with the national conditions will be confirmed

Page 6



Page 3 of 8

1.8

1.9

1.10

2.1

2.2

23

through the planning template and narrative plan. Spend applicable to these
national conditions is be calculated in the planning template based on
scheme-level expenditure data.

The ICB and local authority are also required to ensure that local providers of
NHS and social care services have been involved in planning the use of BCF
funding for 2023 to 2025. In particular, activity to support discharge funded by
the BCF should be agreed as part of the whole system approach to managing
demand and capacity in health and social care. This continues to be achieved
through the Better Together Programme, Joint Commissioning Board and
Warwickshire Care Collaborative.

During 2023 — 2025 governance of implementation of the BCF will move to the
developing Warwickshire Care Collaborative with a plan of action to support
the transition. The care collaborative currently shapes decisions as a
consultative forum but there are plans to move it to a formal sub-committee of
the ICB, with decision making responsibilities, by January 2024.

Similar to last year, local areas are required to submit a plan showing capacity
and demand, which is incorporated in the BCF Planning Template. This
includes:

e expected demand for intermediate care services (and other short-term
care) to help people remain independent at home (including support aimed
at avoiding unnecessary hospital admissions and support following
discharge from hospital);

e Services to support this recovery including rehabilitation and reablement;
and

e expected capacity to meet this demand.

Financial Implications
Grant Funding to Local Government

Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) — In advance of the 2023/24 financial
year and publication of the BCF Policy Framework, the Health and Wellbeing
Board at its meeting on 11th January 2023 received an update on the
approach to reviewing schemes funded by the iBCF and supported the list of
schemes to be funded from the iBCF for 2023/24.

These schemes have now been assured against the Policy Framework and it
has been confirmed that they continue to meet the required conditions of the
grant.

The grant conditions remain broadly the same as in previous years. The
funding may only be used for the purposes of:
* Meeting adult social care needs.
» Reducing pressures on the NHS, including seasonal winter pressures.
» Supporting more people to be discharged from hospital when they are
ready.

Page 7



Page 4 of 8

« Ensuring that the social care provider market is supported.
2.4  Disabled Facilities Grant - Ringfenced DFG funding continues to be
allocated through the BCF and will continue to be paid to upper-tier local
authorities. The statutory duty to provide DFGs to those who qualify for them
is placed on local housing authorities.
2.4  Similar to previous years, the Disabled Facilities Grant continues to be
allocated through the Better Care Fund through top tier authorities due to its
importance to the health and care system and is pooled into the BCF to
promote joined-up approaches to meeting people’s needs to help support
more people of all ages to live in suitable housing so they can stay
independent for longer. Creating a home environment that supports people to
live safely and independently can make a significant contribution to health and
wellbeing, and is an integral part of our integration plans, and strategic use of
the DFG can support this. The amounts allocated to the District and Borough
Councils are pass-ported straight to them and monitoring of expenditure takes
place at the HEART Board, with assurance through the Housing Partnership
Board, a sub-group of the Better Together programme, as decisions around
the use of the DFG funding need to be made with the direct involvement of
both tiers working jointly to support integration.
2.5 Discharge Fund - Additional funds provided through the Hospital Discharge
Grant in previous years, have now been included in the BCF for 2023-25 and
a proportion of this is now allocated as a grant to the local authority.

Financial contributions

2.6  Funding sources and expenditure plans:

2023/24

2024/25

Pooled
Contribution

Aligned
Allocation

Total Budget

Pooled
Contribution

Aligned
Allocation

Total Budget

£000

£'000

£000

£'000

£'000

£000

Minimum NHS ring-fenced from ICB
allocation

45,204

110,543

155,747

47,762

116,799

164,562

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)

5,124

5,124

5,124

5,124

Warwickshire County Council Improved
Better Care Fund (iBCF)

15,133

15,133

15,133

15,133

ICB Discharge Fund

3,518

3,518

4,666

4,666

WCC Discharge Fund

2,121

2,121

3,536

3,536

Warwickshire County Council

175,938

Total Pooled Contribution

175,938

180,988

180,988

76,223
297,788

374,011

286,482
357,584

Total Additional Aligned Allocation

Total Budget

Page 8



Page 5 of 8

* Notes:

1) The above table is rounded to £000’s for summary purposes.

2) Areas can agree to pool additional funds into their BCF plan and associated
section 75 agreement(s). These additional contributions are not subject to
the conditions of the BCF but should be recorded in the planning template.

3) The iBCF allocation for 2024/25 will be published in the Local Authority
Settlement in December 2023.

4) Please refer to the attached Appendix for more detail on funding
contributions and spending plans.

5) All finances in the BCF Plan 2023-25 have been prepared by the Finance
Sub-Group in which Finance Leads from both the Local Authority and ICB
are represented.

2.7 Local Areas are also expected to keep records of spending against schemes
funded through the BCF. This activity is led by Finance Leads at WCC and the
ICB on the Finance Sub-Group which supports the Better Together
Programme and assurance is through the Joint Commissioning Board.
iBCF funding can be allocated across any or all of the four purposes of the
grant in a way that local authorities, working with the ICB, determine best
meets local needs and pressures. No fixed proportion needs to be allocated
across each of the purposes. The grant conditions for the iBCF also require
that the local authority pool the grant funding into the local BCF and report as
required through BCF reporting.

Mandatory funding sources

2.8  The following minimum funding must be pooled into the Better Care Fund in
2023-25:

2.9

Funding Sources 2023/24 2024/25
Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) £5,124,786 £5,124,786
Minimum NHS Contribution £45,204,245 £47,762,805
Discharge Fund - ICB Contribution £3,518,000 £4 666,667
Discharge Fund — Local Authorit

Contribgﬁon (WGC) y £2121,662 | £3,536,103
iBCF (WCC) £15,133,281 £15,133,281
Total £71,101,974 £76,223,642

Financial Implications

The programme and initiatives for its success are in part funded through
national grants: Better Care Fund, additional Discharge Fund, Improved Better
Care Fund and Disabled Facilities Grant (2023/24: £70m). The first two come
from the Department of Health and Social Care through the ICB, while the
latter two are received by the local authority from Department for Levelling

Up, Housing and Communities. All are dependent on meeting conditions that
contribute towards the programme and the targets, and that plans to this
effect are jointly agreed between the Integrated Care Board and the Local

Authority under a pooled budget arrangement.

Page 9




Page 6 of 8

2.10 Similar to previous years the County Council continues as the pooled budget
holder for the fund.

2.11 The County Council also continues to align Out of Hospital service provision
and funding with Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care Board to support
closer integration as part of plans for moving to an Integrated Care System.

2.12 The iBCF allocation for 2024/25 has not been published and will be confirmed
as part of the wider Local Authority Funding settlement later in 2023. Areas
have therefore been advised to plan on the basis that allocations will be
consistent with the approach taken in 2023 to 2024 and so no inflationary
uplift has been added.

2.13 The iBCF is temporary. In order to counter the risk inherent in temporary
funding, all new initiatives are temporary or commissioned with exit clauses.
There are, however, a number of areas where the funding is being used to
maintain statutory social care spending and this would require replacement
funding if the Better Care Fund was removed without replacement. This risk
is noted in Warwickshire County Council’s annual and medium-term financial
planning.

2.14 As in previous years, a Section 75 Legal Agreement will underpin the financial
pooling arrangements. This cannot be signed until our Plan is nationally
approved. In order to avoid under delivery and underspends, schemes and
initiatives have to be entered into prior to the legal agreement being signed,
but this is no different to previous years. The intention is that the Section 75
agreement will be drafted so that it can be signed by the partner organisations
as soon as approval is granted.

3. Environmental Implications
None.

4. Supporting Information
Metrics

4.1 The BCF Policy Framework sets national metrics that must be included in
BCF plans in 2023-25. Ambitions should be agreed between the local
authority and the ICB and signed off by the HWB.

4.2 The framework retains two existing metrics which impact the local authority
from previous years:
 effectiveness of reablement (proportion of older people still at home 91
days after discharge from hospital into reablement or rehabilitation
+ older adults whose long-term care needs are met by admission to
residential or nursing care per 100,000 population.

Page 10



Page 7 of 8

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

5.3

The measure of avoidable admissions (unplanned hospitalisation for chronic
ambulatory care sensitive conditions per 100,000 population) year has also
been retained. Areas need to agree expected levels of avoidable
admissions and how services commissioned through the BCF will minimise
these.

The measure relating to discharges to usual place of residence (proportion
of patients) has also been retained.

A new measure relating to emergency hospital admissions due to falls for
adults aged 65 or over has also been introduced. Areas need to agree
expected levels of admissions due to falls and how services commissioned
through the BCF will minimise these.

Whilst the BCF Plan is for 2023-25, local areas are currently only required to
agree ambitions and plans for metrics for 2023/24. In addition to this, a new
discharge metric will also need to be set ahead of winter 2023. Ambitions for
2024/25 will need to be completed by areas in quarter 4 of 2023/24 and will
include new additional metrics including relating to outcomes following short-
term support to maximise independence.

The proposed ambitions for 2023/24 and rationale are set out in the Planning
Template and Narrative Plan.

Locally we will continue to monitor progress quarterly against the BCF

metrics set out above through the Joint Commissioning Board and Coventry
and Warwickshire Urgent and Emergency Care Board.

Timescales associated with the decision and next steps

Prior to review by the Health and Wellbeing Board, the BCF Plan for 2023-25
has been reviewed and approved by:

Review and Approval Date

Partnership - Joint Commissioning Board 06/06/23
Partnership - Warwickshire Care Collaborative 08/06/23
ICB - Executive 13/06/23
WCC - People DLT 21/06/23
WCC - Corporate Board 20/06/23
NHS Submission Deadline 28/06/23
WCC - Cabinet 13/07/23
Partnership - Health and Wellbeing Board 19/07/23

Regional and National Assurance

NHS England will approve BCF plans in consultation with the Department for
Health and Social Care and the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities. Assurance processes will confirm that national conditions are
met, ambitions are agreed for all national metrics and that all funding is
pooled, with relevant spend agreed. Assurance of plans will be led by Better

Page 11




Page 8 of 8

Care Managers (BCMs) with input from NHS England and local government

representatives and will be a single stage exercise based on a set of key lines
of enquiry. A cross-regional calibration meeting will be held after regions have

submitted their recommendations, bringing together representatives from
each region. Once approved - NHS England, as the accountable body for the
NHS minimum contribution to the fund, will write to areas to confirm that the

NHS minimum funding can be released.

Assurance activity

Date

BCF planning requirements received

4t April 2023

Optional draft BCF planning submission submitted
to BCM

30t May 2023

BCF planning submission from local HWB areas
(agreed by ICB and WCC) sent to national BCF
Team at NHS England

28t June 2023

Scrutiny of BCF plans by regional assurers,
assurance panel meetings and regional moderation

28t June — 28t July
2023

Cross regional collaboration

31 August 2023

Approval letters issued giving formal permission to
spend (NHS minimum)

8th September 2023

All section 75 agreements to be signed and in

place

31st October 2023

Appendices

1.

Appendix 1 — BCF Narrative Plan

2. Appendix 2 — BCF Planning Template.
Background Papers
1. None.
Name Contact Information
Report Author Rachel Briden, Integrated rachelbriden@warwickshire.gov.uk,
Partnership Manager alisoncole@warwickshire.gov.uk
Ali Cole, Strategy and
Commissioning Manager,
Health Wellbeing and Self
Care
Director Becky Hale, Chief beckyhale@warwickshire.gov.uk
Commissioning Officer
(Health and Care)
Executive Nigel Minns, Executive nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk
Director Director for People
Portfolio Holder | Councillor Margaret Bell, margaretbell@warwickshire.gov.uk
Portfolio Holder for Adult
Social Care & Health

The report was circulated to the following members prior to publication:
Local Member(s): None
Other members:

Page 12



mailto:beckyhale@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:margaretbell@warwickshire.gov.uk

Page 1 of 36
Draft V0.4

Integration and Better
Care Fund (BCF) Plan

Better Care Fund Plan 2023/25 Submission
Final Draft V0.4

Health and Wellbeing Board
(HWBB):

Warwickshire

@Wﬂrwickshim
County Counc

Page 13



Page 2 of 36
Draft V0.4

KEY
NATIONAL CONDITIONS

Planning requirements and Key Lines of Enquiry set out the main
areas that need to be covered.

National Condition 1 — Jointly agreed plan

Planning Requirement 1 - A jointly developed and agreed plan that all
parties sign up to

Key Line of Enquiry: Organisations involved in preparing the plan

The following organisations/partnerships have been involved in developing and reviewing
the schemes and joint integration activities as set out in this Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan for
2023 - 2025 (and supporting BCF Planning Template), that will be submitted to NHS
England for assurance:

o Representatives on the Warwickshire Joint Commissioning Board:

o Commissioning, delivery and finance leads from children/young people and
families (including Education), public health and adult social care from
Warwickshire County Council (WCC);

o Clinical, commissioning and finance leads from Coventry and Warwickshire
Integrated Care Board (CWICB);

o Operational and contracting leads from South Warwickshire University NHS
Foundation Trust (SWFT) and Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust
(CWPT);

o Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire, and Warwickshire
Police Safeguarding Team;

o Headteacher representatives.

Acute Trusts (George Eliot Hospital NHS Trust, South Warwickshire University NHS
Foundation Trust and University Hospitals Coventry and Warwickshire NHS Trust) and
Coventry City Council through the Coventry and Warwickshire Urgent and Emergency
Care Delivery Board.

The five District and Borough Councils (Stratford Upon Avon District Council, Warwick
District Council, Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council, Rugby Borough Council and
North Warwickshire Borough Council) through the Better Care Fund Housing Partnership
Board.

Social care and voluntary and community sector providers through provider forums and
targeted discussions related to specific schemes/initiatives.

[}

Representatives on the Warwickshire Care Collaborative consultative forum have
considered the plan. The forum is chaired by the Director of Public Health and includes:
2x Coventry and Warwickshire ICB representatives

Rugby Place Partnership representative

South Warwickshire Place Partnership representative

Warwickshire North Place Partnership representative

Page 14



Page 3 of 36
Draft V0.4

o 3x representatives from general practice and the Coventry and Warwickshire Primary
Care Collaborative

e Representative from the Voluntary and Community Sector

¢ Representative from the Adult Social Care Sector linked to a provider reference group.

¢ Representative from the Mental Health Collaborative

¢ Representative from the Learning Disability and Autism Collaborative

e George Eliot NHS Trust representative

e South Warwickshire University Foundation Trust representative

¢ University Hospitals Coventry and Warwickshire representative

¢ Representative from Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust

e Adult Social Care, Children and Families and People Strategy and Commissioning
representative

o Warwickshire Healthwatch

o District and Borough Council representative

Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board members considered and endorsed proposed
schemes at their meeting on the 19t July 2023.

Preparatory Activity

In August 2022, the Warwickshire Joint Commissioning Board started an exercise to review
the Better Care Fund and the Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF). As part of this exercise,
twenty iBCF schemes were prioritised for in-depth review with a prioritisation tool used to
assist the process. The joint review comprised staff from the local authority and Integrated
Care Board (ICB) and ran from the October 2022 to January 2023, and focused on jointly
reviewing iBCF schemes to the value of £3.96m.

The review focussed on assuring that schemes continue to meet the BCF conditions and
iBCF grant conditions, respond to current system pressures/priorities and health inequalities
and are as efficient and effective as possible; taking into account whether there are
alternative ways of achieving similar outcomes or alternative funding arrangements.

High level review outcomes and recommendations were as follows:

e The majority of schemes are well established with positive impact evidenced across
health and social care and if withdrawn would have a detrimental impact to our
population.

¢ Potential efficiencies to the iBCF budget for nine schemes would release approx.
£500k for reinvestment in existing schemes from 2023/24 and contribute to the
inflationary cost pressures.

¢ One existing scheme should continue but instead be funded from the Mental Health
budget outside of the iBCF.

As such in advance of receipt of the Better Care Fund Policy Framework and Planning
Requirements, draft schemes, activities and priorities to be delivered through the Better Care
Fund local delivery programme (the Better Together Programme) were discussed and
agreed in meetings and through wider engagement with the partners listed above, ready for
the start of the 2023/24 year.

Page 15



Page 4 of 36
Draft V0.4

Preparing the BCF Plan

Following receipt of the BCF Planning Requirements in April 2023, the stakeholders
represented on the Warwickshire Joint Commissioning Board and Coventry & Warwickshire
Urgent and Emergency Care Board (listed above) have been re-engaged to reaffirm and
update, where required, the schemes, activities, and metrics. In addition, the Warwickshire
Care Collaborative Consultative Forum, as part of the Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated
Care System (ICS), have been involved in shaping and approving our BCF plan. As such a
wide range of partners including health, social care and the voluntary sector have had the
opportunity to shape the plan and approve the content.

Approval of the BCF Plan

We are therefore pleased to confirm commitment to, and agreement by, all signatories of the
plan. This includes the funding and spending proposals summarised in this plan (Local
Authority, DFG, ICB minimum contribution and iBCF) and set out in more detail in the
Planning Template.

Approval timetable

The following confirms the governance route for signing off the plan:

Organisation Review and Decision /
Approval Date
Wider Partnership Joint Commissioning Board 06/06/23
Warwickshire Care Collaborative 08/06/23
CW ICB Integrated Care Board Executive 13/06/23
WCC People Directorate Leadership Team 21/06/23
WCC Corporate Board 20/06/23
Submission deadline 28/06/23
WCC Cabinet 13/07/23
Partnership Health and Wellbeing Board — review, and 19/07/23
approval

Responsibilities for preparing this plan

Accountable: Chief Commissioning Officer (Health and Care), Warwickshire County
Council and South Warwickshire University NHS Foundation Trust

Responsible: Ali Cole, Strategy and Commissioning Manager, WCC.

Consulted: All partners represented on the Warwickshire Joint Commissioning

Board, Warwickshire County Council’s Corporate Board and Cabinet,
Coventry and Warwickshire ICB Executive Team and Board, Coventry
and Warwickshire’s Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery Board,
Warwickshire Care Collaborative Consultative Forum.

Informed: Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board

Document History

Page 16



Page 5 of 36
Draft V0.4

Version
V0.1

V0.2

V.03

V0.4

Summary of changes

Draft version shared with stakeholders

Draft incorporating comments from Stakeholders including WCC, ICB,
Care Collaborative, Place Health and Wellbeing Partnerships, Housing

Partnership and NHSE

Final draft following proofread and incorporating update to D2A

metrics

Final draft incorporating feedback from Corporate Board and

Warwick District Council

Page 17

Author
Ali Cole

Ali Cole

Ali Cole

Ali Cole

Date
10/5/23

26/5/23

20/6/23

22/6/23



Page 6 of 36
Draft V0.4

Executive summary

Background

The Better Care Fund has been one of the key contributors over a number of years towards
building stronger partnerships and integration between the commissioners and providers of
health, care and housing services in Warwickshire. Despite significant pressures across the
system, including a continual reduction in social care resources and increasing acuity of
need, partners have strived to make a sustained difference to the way services are
organised and delivered. By working together, the expertise and strengths within the system
have been acknowledged and resulted in opportunities to be more innovative and reshape
how services are commissioned and delivered. These foundations have enabled the
services currently commissioned through the Better Care Fund to commence with plans to
move responsibility into the geographical collaboratives of the new Coventry and
Warwickshire Integrated Care System during phase 1 development.

Locally our BCF Plan for 2023/25 will continue to build on our long-term vision, as outlined in
our original submission in 2015/16, our updated 2017-19 and 2022-23 plans, and builds on
the progress made from 2016-23. Interdependencies with other programmes of work
including personalisation and reducing health inequalities are incorporated within the
elements of the programme.

The majority of schemes and activities in our BCF plan for 2023/25 continue on from
previous years, with key priorities described in the following section. The illustration below
summarises the schemes in our BCF Plan, new activity and the links to NHS programme

activity:
C BETTER TOGETHER (BETTER CARE FUND) PROGRAMME 2023/25 )
IMPROVED OPERATIONAL WAYS OF COMMISSIONING AND MARKET
[ MANAGING DEMAND j ( PROMOTING INDEPENDENCE ] [ WORKING ] [ SHAPING ]
End of Life Strategy ) ( Iintegrated Care Record Under 18s ) Mental Health /LD / Autism support
Z Project (PR1882) to Quality Assurance Team - pilot
S Suicide Prevention Strategy
'E r C Discharge Frontrunner: Community Recovery Service
< 'E Ageing Well Programme Priorities:
5 .;_'. Proactive Care B:H d
= Urgent Community
]
E = [ UECB Priority: Virtual Words )} (___Continuing Healthcare Review )
o
£8
c
£
=
S Early Intervention and prevention (_Assistive Technology / Telehealth C Out Of Hosgltal Review ) ( Discharge Frontrunner: )
2 including Social Prescribing D2A Lead Commissionin,
5 Hospital to Home A P
E = anced Health i &W UEC Board Priority - End of Life
o5 ¢ Falls Prevention )] Rapid Response pilot
F are Home Trusted Assessors — pilot
3z [ d pil
C Advocacy Support D) (_ Warwickshire Learning Partnership )
z 4 (Housing Hospital Liaison Officer - pilot)
.5 E Gecummssmn ntegrated ammumib e e uality
] T T assurance framework
£ °
E Market Sustainability )
8
C Autism Strategy ) ( Independent Living for Adufts, incl. ¢ ICE 575 b} Domiciliary Care Market incuding
K ECH and Shared Lives**** Brokerage and O
- Links to Out of Hospital:
5 ( Eousmg Partnership incl. HEART 3"? ) **Single Point of Access P (C_Accommaodation with Support s75 )
2a homeless i Health
2 Ll (__D2A Model [Discharge To Assess) )
C Housing Related Support ) Integrated Place Base(? Teams
a Pathways e.g. Frailty ( Moving On Beds b}
£ [ bl and Rehabilitation ) ****Telehealth (e.g. Docobo)
@ >
3 7 _ Dementia Strategy D]
-] 4 Occup | Therapists b} Confinuing Health Care {Joint) )
Carers Action Plan D)
= (CIntegrated Care Record 18+ (PR517) )

Joint Priorities for 2023/25

As outlined in our Coventry and Warwickshire ICS Five Year Joint Forward Plan, enabling
and supporting people to maintain their independence at home is at the heart of our
approach. The work that we are doing through our Hospital Discharge Community Recovery
Frontrunner Programme in Warwickshire is underpinned by this principle and an opportunity
to transform our local offer (see further detail related to this priority below).

Page 18



Page 7 of 36
Draft V0.4

Relationships are robust across health and care partners with commitment to working
together and sharing learning to improve population health and individual outcomes. We
have a number of joint strategies and delivery plans that run through 2023 — 2025 that will
continue to be a focus for us to improve our support offer for people, including, but not
limited to, people with dementia, autism and informal carers. There is a strong commitment
to co-production across partners and residents and services users are regularly engaged
and involved in the development of strategies and commissioning intentions as well as
service design and evaluation.

We continue to work together to consider new ways of working including how to maximise
the use of remote and digital technology to meet people’s health and care needs. We also
collaborate to support market shaping and development to ensure that we have a
sustainable care market able to meet the needs of our residents.

Key Changes since the previous BCF plan and how we will continue to implement a
joined up approach to integrated services

As the new architecture for the Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care System has
started to be implemented, increased focus on joint delivery (in addition to joint
commissioning which has been in place for a while) has resulted in some of the duplication
in previous years being removed, as operational and commissioning activity delivered
through both the BCF and Ageing Well Programmes are now embedded in the new
arrangements.

The key cross-cutting and joint priorities are highlighted in yellow in the illustration below,
along with the ICS reporting arrangements:

Coventry & Warwickshire ICB UEC Board

Alternative
Pathways to ED

C&W CAG

C&W ICB Urgent and Emergency Care

UTC+ Frailty + Ageing
M) well [RF]
Ambulance Virtual Wards Discharge to
Handovers +VC Links Assess
111 referral High Intensity .
MFFD
uTtc Urgent
Standardisatio Community CHC
n

Mental Health
[ma]

Discharge
[HL]

End of Life
[pc]

System
Escalation [HL]

Primary Care
[Ts]

K]

Coordination
Hub (5CC)

Strategy and
Engagement

Community

PC Surge
Falls

Response

Board
Assurance
Framework

MH response
Ambulance

PC Winter
Access Plan

Workforce

| S

PCNs GPEA
Paramedics
Care Homes

Winter
Planning

Children in
Crisis

Training and
Education

999 referval
pathways

-

Enhanced
DOS profiles Health in Care
Homes

Patient and
Carer Info

Access &
Inequalities

111 MH
option 2

Discharge
funding

Resp@Home
f nMABs

Y Y Ty N Ty
— S/
Ty

i

Enha!'lu:d Crisis Hubs CAS/[ISPA Criteria to Hospice WMAS
Health in Care and Teams development Admit Collaboration Liaison
Homes
Missed
Groutet Safe Havens SDEC Access Opportunity Ceranord

Hours Capacity

Audits

Performance
Monitoring

Fuller -
Urgent Access

CPCS
development
s

_

‘. Coventry and Warwickshire

Health and Care Partnership

QFFICIAL

Governance of the BCF Plan and implementation in Warwickshire

Page 19




Page 8 of 36
Draft V0.4

In Warwickshire, the mechanism for joint health, housing and social care planning is through
the Better Together Programme.

Warwickshire Health

and Wellbeing Board

Coventry and Warwickshire

ICB Executive Group ~ ~Toooooooooooooofoooooooo oo Urgent and Emergency Care
Board
AN 1
Warwickshire Ageing ----
(Future arrangemenrsj \ Well Board '

Care Collaborative !
& Better Care Fund / Better Together Programme -—-- :
Place Based Partnerships) Governance via Warwickshire’s All Age Joint Commissioning Board

Better Care Fund Plan Portfolio Areas

v (our e :Ioc:;rm C&l:l:gl:_vﬁ?’ eAReAT | [ ACCOMMODATION 'MJ:::’IED HOUSING CROSS
PARTNERSHIP
B oo taooncive)) e e HOME WITH SUPPORT T CUTTING (IBCF)

System Assessment &
Operational Response Team

Discharge Delivery i

Group

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH TRANSFORMATION

N J
e

WCC’s Transformation of Adult Customer Journey and move to Strengths
Based Practice and Asset Based Community Development, implemented in
2019

Governance decisions regarding the BCF for Warwickshire are endorsed by Warwickshire
County Council Cabinet and the Coventry and Warwickshire ICB with ultimate accountability
for signing off BCF commitments made by Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board.

Governance of implementation of the Better Care Fund, BCF Plan and Better Together
Programme is currently through the Warwickshire Joint Commissioning Board; underpinned
by a Section 75 agreement.

Our BCF Plan comprising the pooled/aligned budgets, list of schemes, metrics and priorities
outlined in the Planning Template and this Narrative Plan have been developed by the Joint
Commissioning Board, as part of these wider partnership and system governance
arrangements.

The Board is supported by a Finance Sub-Group (comprising Finance Leads from the local

authority and CWICB) which leads on scheme level spending plans for the pooled (base
BCF) and aligned budgets, risk share and associated Section 75 arrangements.

Page 20



Page 9 of 36
Draft V0.4

Integrated Care System governance arrangements

The illustration below summarises the emerging Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care
System architecture.

Emerging System
Architecture

Primary Care

Network Statutory I I Consultative Forum

Care Collaborative Consultative Forum

Integrated Care Board — Board
oint 5 year Forward Plan and asuranoe
e defivery of statutory responsibilities)

C P
FF'“' nce and Planning and “ME"““_ ety Audit People
Population Health Committee ‘Committee
Committee : Committes
Decision Shaping ISR

Coventry Care ‘Warwickshire Care
Collaborative Collaborative
Consultative Forum Consultative Forum

OFFICIAL

The development and delivery of place partnership plans in Warwickshire North, Rugby and
South Warwickshire are underpinned by the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and have a
focus on delivering outcomes for our population against the Kings Fund quadrants. The
Council and ICB are positively engaged in the emerging Mental Health and Learning
Disability and Autism Collaboratives. Prevention and promoting independence are key.

Page 21



Page 10 of 36
Draft V0.4

Planning Requirement 2: A clear narrative for the integration of health,
social care and housing

Key Line of Enquiry: Overall BCF plan and approach to integration

Approaches to Joint / Collaborative Commissioning

Health, social care and wider partners within Warwickshire and Coventry have
previously through the BCF developed a variety of integrated and joint working
arrangements, which have formed the foundation of the Coventry and Warwickshire
ICS.

There are arrangements in place for the BCF and wider services, including joint
commissioning, partnerships, funding and strategies, lead commissioning arrangements and
integrated approaches to quality assurance, training and market management. These
arrangements continue with a joint commitment that the BCF for Warwickshire (and
Coventry) will be one of the functions that transitions from the ICB to geographical
collaboratives as part of phase 1 delegations. As outlined above, governance of
implementation of the Better Care Fund, BCF Plan and Better Together Programme is
currently through the Warwickshire Joint Commissioning Board; underpinned by a Section
75 agreement. During 2023 — 2025 governance of implementation of the BCF will move to
the developing Warwickshire Care Collaborative with a plan of action to support the
transition. The care collaborative currently shapes decisions as a consultative forum but
there are plans to move it to a formal sub-committee of the ICB, with decision making
responsibilities, by January 2024.

Integrated commissioning is well embedded in Warwickshire, supported by established
integrated roles:

¢ A Chief Commissioning Officer (Health and Care) for Warwickshire County Council and
South Warwickshire University NHS Foundation Trust. In addition to directing
commissioning activity this role is supporting the development of the Warwickshire Care
Collaborative and place-based delegations.

e Ajointly funded Assistant Director of Public Health between WCC and SWFT, aligned to
the Out of Hospital and Warwickshire Care Collaborative acting as public health lead for
delivery of the Health and Wellbeing strategy.

e 2 jointly funded public health consultants between Warwickshire County Council and the
ICB. These consultants take a place lead responsibility as well as having a focus on
children and young people and mental health respectively.

o Ajointly funded (WCC/SWFT) Integrated Lead Commissioner for Integrated and
Targeted Commissioning and Out of Hospital Services.

¢ An Integrated Commissioning team for People with Disabilities, (WCC/CWICB/Coventry

City Council).

¢ Jointly funded commissioning and quality roles for the Integrated Community Equipment
Service

¢ An Integrated Partnership Manager responsible for the Better Care Fund on behalf of
WCC and ICB.

Collaborative Development

Work continues across health and care partners to support development of the Coventry and
Warwickshire Integrated Care System (ICS). The Integrated Care Board (ICB) and
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) are now formally constituted and embedded and the two
geographical care collaboratives across Coventry and Warwickshire were formally stood up
in 2022. A key component of the ICS, these care collaboratives are made up of the
partnership of organisations responsible for organising and delivering health and care within

Page 22



Page 11 of 36
Draft V0.4

Coventry and Warwickshire respectively. In Coventry and Warwickshire, we have endorsed
the primacy of place and as such a key function of the Warwickshire Care Collaborative is to
support and enable integrated planning and delivery across the three place partnerships in
Warwickshire North, Rugby and South Warwickshire.

The Care Collaboratives:

¢ Are the foundation for the integration of health, social care and public health services;
and population health at Coventry level and Warwickshire level.

e Are the entities that the ICB will delegate NHS resource to for the services agreed in
scope (from April 2023 subject to assurance of readiness to operate). Current services
in scope for Care Collaborative delegation include urgent and emergency care, out of
hospital, Continuing Healthcare for adults and the BCF.

o Will be held to account by the ICB for the delivery of identified metrics/outcomes
associated with functions and resources delegated to them.

Partners across Warwickshire continue to engage in the Coventry and Warwickshire
Collaborative Development Programme, facilitated and led by the Coventry and
Warwickshire ICB. A roadmap for further development of collaborative arrangements has
been devised (summarised in Appendix 1) to support transition of the Warwickshire Care
Collaborative from a decision shaping consultative forum to a formal decision-making
committee of the ICB by the January 2024. In addition to the Care Collaboratives, Coventry
and Warwickshire have established provider collaboratives to support delivery of our ICS
ambitions for integrated delivery. This includes collaboratives for Primary Care, Acute Care,
Learning Disabilities and Autism and Mental Health.

Coventry and Warwickshire One People Plan

The Coventry and Warwickshire One People Plan was co-developed via an extensive multi-
stakeholder engagement and research project, which demonstrated consensus of support for
a One People Plan that spans the ICS. At the heart of this support was a call for the
achievement of four priorities for system level action: System Culture and Organisational
Development; Attraction, Recruitment and Retention; People Development and
Workforce Innovation.

These priorities enable, but are not responsible for, Place based activity and deeply respect
organisational autonomy. They also ensure the delivery of the NHS People Plan 2020/21,
the 10 expectations of a People Function and the ICB Clinical and Care Professional
Leadership Framework. Delivery of the One People Plan is led by the ICB People Board,
with oversight by the ICB Board via the People Committee. It is focused on improving the
things that we currently do, as well as enabling innovation and transformation.

The health and care workforce, support the delivery of all 9 strategic objectives set out in our
Integrated Care Strategy and reflected in the Joint Forward Plan.

Our people are our biggest asset and value is created for our population by the skills,
experience and expertise of the people working within our system. Ensuring that we have the
right mix of skilled staff in all parts of our system will support the improvement of health
outcomes and reduce inequalities across Coventry and Warwickshire.

Population Health Management and Prevention

The Joint Forward Plan 2023-28 for Coventry and Warwickshire includes the following
ambitions:

e Population Health Management (‘PHM’) is embedded as business as usual across our
system — meaning that there is a shared understanding of and commitment to PHM as

Page 23



Page 12 of 36
Draft V0.4

“everyone’s business” across all system partners and PHM is built into strategic planning
and decision-making at all levels of the system and across all partners.

o A system wide commitment to supporting prevention is embedded, with prevention
explicitly embedded and resourced across all plans, policies and strategies for our
population. This includes addressing the impact of the wider determinants of health
across the life course, ensuring residents live in affordable and good quality homes, have
access to good jobs, feel safe and connected to their communities, utilise green space
and are enabled to use active travel.

Our PHM Roadmap sets out our local vision for PHM to “empower everyone to live well by
Joined-up, proactive, data-driven health and care”. The PHM Roadmap outlines the actions
that we will take to spread, scale and sustain PHM capabilities across our system, aligned to
the four components of the national PHM Maturity Matrix. We have a Population Health
Management Board which engages representation from across partner organisations and
provides oversight of the delivery of the PHM Roadmap. The PHM Board reports to our
Population Health, Prevention and Inequalities Board, which strategically aligns PHM,
prevention, personalised care and health inequalities and wider determinants work. The
PHM Board also links to our Digital Transformation Board. We have made significant
progress in implementing a local PHM platform, through which we will ultimately be able to
link near-real time data from a range of sources. Key information governance documentation
is in place to support PHM activity and data has been on boarded from 40 GP practices.

Integration with Housing

The Housing Partnership Board, a sub-group of the Better Together Programme is the key
delivery vehicle for the housing and homelessness related elements of the Warwickshire
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2026 and Strategy Delivery Plan for 2021-23.

The Housing Partnership is committed to delivering a joined-up approach across housing,
social care and health to improve outcomes and reduce inequalities in health

outcomes. System wide benefits of suitable and appropriate housing include helping the
frail, elderly, those with more complex needs and specific vulnerable groups from being
admitted to hospital, be discharged from hospital; and be supported to remain independent
in their community.

WCC has excellent strategic partnerships with the District and Borough local authority
housing teams and is working closely with them to gain mutual benefits from continuing
efforts to develop the Housing offer in the County. Examples of joint working include:

The District and Borough Councils employ three Housing Liaison Officers, who provide
housing expertise to NHS and social care teams to support early discharge planning for
Warwickshire patients admitted to hospital, whose discharge may otherwise be delayed.
This service is now well established and is funded through the iBCF.

The HEART service was set up in 2016 to deliver improved health and social care outcomes
and maximise people’s independence in their own homes. Governance of the HEART
Service is through a multi-agency HEART Board and the partners have agreed to renew the
partnership agreement for a further 5 years from April 2023. This is achieved through:

o effective use of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG),

prevention activity, including advice and information,

provide equipment and major / minor adaptations,

emergency support, and

in 2020/21 expansion to include a countywide handy person service.

Page 24



Page 13 of 36
Draft V0.4

Commissioners for Housing with Care and Housing Related Support work closely with
Housing Board to ensure that the services WCC commissions best support the wider
strategic activity to prevent and reduce homelessness and meet care and support needs.

A Strategic Housing Action Plan (SHAP) for learning disabilities and autism is in place with a
delivery group attended by stakeholders from across the system and experts by experience.
The plan was co-produced with housing, health and social care to align with strategic
objectives from each agency and has been refined through co-production with Experts by
Experience. The plan is focussed on improving access to suitable accommodation in a
timely manner, improving the approach to reasonable adjustments, clarification of applicable
financial arrangements and improving networking and systems and processes across
partner organisations.

Joint Priorities for 2023-25

Discharge to Assess and Community Recovery

As one of six DHSC-NHSE Discharge Integration frontrunners with a focus on intermediate
care we continue to work at pace to deliver our Hospital Discharge Community Recovery
Programme. The plan on a page provides a summary of the programme ambitions and
activities.

Warwickshire Hospital April to June 2023 July 2023 - March 2024
Warwickshire Hospital Discharge Community Recovery

Discharge Community Service will consolidate Pathway 1 services from nine to three

Continue to adapt

. Review and the therapy Progress lead
Recovery Service z. T o w. z B, orefiethe  workdoceand commissioning Considerthe .
B 2.3 52 E 53 giI S £% the NHSrolein  jovelopment of
238 2z g% 3 Ege = £=5 g z Eg = _g mcnv;ryeimln Lhevkafvy g lnrADischalige ::En'mlllm e NHSE
- 3 2 oS a5 s g = 4 = fer based on Jorkforce ane to Assess in Intermediate
High Level Plan 2023 -2024 28 & £%2 888 & 82 &8 82 23 feedback TrainingPlan  Warwickshire ~ care Care Framework
T TO DO THIS WE WILL
Our vision is that Warwickshire people °°'“"'""E i
in an acute hospital, who need further Response Team Recovery Service 3 Establish a reference group to review activity and impact data, and stakeholder feed-
support to recover, will have access to back, to further refine the Community Recovery Service
efiegtwe tr_ler_apeul:c intermediate care TO DO THIS WE WILL Work with il P leads in SWFT and the
services within 24 hours of no longer Cuurmll to design and -felwer an appmach 1o resident engagement
meeting the eriteria to reside. Commission a short-term ﬂﬂmitl_llila care service for patients to start within 24 hours
. of being referred to the Community Recovery Service Re-establish and reposition the offer from the Community Response Team and
. . Reablement ensuring they align with the Community Recovery Service and continue to
Through the delivery of a new Community Introduce a single referral form and single point of access for the Pathway 1 services deliver positive outcomes for residents acrass the spectrum of need, as well as across
Recovery Service we aim to: to include Continuing Healthcare by the end of June the community
. v Enable more people leaving hospital to access a mix of domiciliary care and therapy Evaluale the benefits of direct provision by the NHS in order to support the domiciliary
Incre?§e the iz )l [ECeng support at home to regain and maintain their independence care m:
rehabilitation and recovery services after
an acute hospital admission, increasing I h h h Implement the plan to review and progress lead commissioning arrangements for
people’s functional outcomes and ability to ZEEE G DE CT Cr e e B D DR e il Discharge to Assess in Warwickshire
remain independent at home.
TO ACHIEVE THIS WE NEED TO TO ACHIEVE THIS WE NEED TO

« Decrease the need for long-term care by
decreasing demand and acuity. El\gaﬁandworkcnllaboralwe%whhMEvoImryandoommnnnysemormsupnm Establish the most effectil thods for and review drawi all

needs in the communi available data
* Reduce length of stay and bed days lost by d escalation for
people on this pathway 10 enabl " v o "
decreasing the number of people staying MMW blended roles and place -based MDT's receipt of the Community Recovery Service to review and refine the offer
in an acute hospital who should be at
home (or in more i i and f hospital disch: 50 people are e = m
bed-based care). teady to ga home as soon as they no longer meet criteria to reside “w:"n: m"ﬂﬂmﬁmm i EouED
Fast track the availability of equipment to support people at home Monitor the impact of the Community I"_hemvay_l!‘:zwioe,lmluding financial impact, and
Is for fi of
Baseli P recording and reporting to
monitor activity and impact of the Community Recovery Service Support the review and re-design of Continuing Healthcare processes
Agree and implement practice and support offer changes and communicate these to Continue to mwey engage with the NHSE Intermediate Care programme and
people leaving hospital to manage expectations community of practice
Increase therapy support in th d pacity Continue to work with the voluntary ity sector testing new
effectiveness of current resource 1o meeting s i the i

Wapwickshire

'HeaU.h 'qnd
Bl NHS Welleeirg

The Strategic Director of People within Warwickshire County Council and Chief Executive
Officer of the Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care Board have signed a memorandum
of understanding with NHSE committing Warwickshire to deliver the pilot. In Warwickshire we
are focused on:

e To further develop pathway 1 discharge to assess services in Warwickshire to enable
people in an acute hospital, who need further support, to access timely therapeutic
intermediate care services on discharge.

Page 25



Page 14 of 36
Draft V0.4

e To develop a Hospital Discharge Community Recovery Service building on existing
arrangements and ensuring compliance with Hospital Discharge Guidance. To go live
from April 2023.

e Toidentify a lead commissioner across the Place footprint and test the impact of a singular
approach to commissioning intermediate care post-discharge (discharge to assess).

In addition to the above we are progressing 3 aligned work programmes under the umbrella
of this work:

e Review and re-design of Continuing Healthcare for Adults
e Progressing lead commissioning arrangements for discharge to assess
o Considering the NHS as a provider of domiciliary care

Market Sustainability

Our Market Sustainability Plan was submitted to the Department for Health and Social Care
and is on our website. It sets out how we are supporting our provider market given the
current challenging conditions. Our offer, supported by the BCF, is made up of financial
increases, quality assurance support, workforce recruitment, retention and development help
and market viability interventions where providers require advice and support. The Fair Cost
of Care exercise has been completed with 93% (£1.398 million) of the Council’s Market
Sustainability and Improvement Fund allocation made available for distribution to the
provider market. Where funding schemes are available nationally on application (e.g. the
current NHS Digital Transformation Fund), the Council, with the ICB as appropriate, is
committed to ensuring that such additional funding and support is made available to services
in Warwickshire. During 2023 — 2025 we will be implementing our commitments within the
Market Sustainability Plan and further refining it in collaboration with providers.

Review and Redesign of Continuing Healthcare

Through joint working between the ICB and the two geographic Care Collaboratives, we are
committed to reviewing and re-designing commissioning arrangements for NHS Continuing
Healthcare (‘CHC’) services to support a transition to more integrated delivery at Place. Key
planned activities are as follows:

e Establishing a dedicated CHC Transformation Programme;

o Evaluating options for future commissioning and delivery, and agreeing a preferred model
for each Care Collaborative;

o Developing a Transition Plan for each Care Collaborative detailing the steps required and
agreed timelines to achieve the agreed future configuration, and then implementing the
Transition Plans;

e Establishing a market management workstream and aligned action plan for care homes,
supported living, hospices, and domiciliary care;

e Establish quality, finance and performance reporting streams.

Review and recommissioning of Out of Hospital Services

Over the coming years, the ICB will transition to a commissioning infrastructure which allows
for local flexibility to identify the best ways to improve population health and well-being,
enables decisions to be taken closer to communities, and supports collaboration between
partners to address inequalities, which not only improves outcomes but also develops
sustainable joined-up value for money services. To support delivery of this approach, the
contracting strategy also needs to evolve to ensure that proposals are developed in
collaboration with system partners so that ICB decisions are aligned with the key priorities
identified at system and place.

Page 26


https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/social-care-health/fair-cost-care

Page 15 of 36
Draft V0.4

The Rugby, Coventry and Warwickshire North Out of Hospital Contracts will expire on 31st
March 2024, and South Warwickshire contract in 2024/25. As such it is critical to undertake a
review of current services to determine future commissioning decisions.

During 2023-24 the ICB will work in partnership with the Care Collaborative as they take on a
more active role in shaping the commissioning of Out of Hospital services. A Joint Review
Group has already been established to develop recommendations for the Care Collaborative
in relation to the future commissioning of Out of Hospital services, specifically in relation to:

e Service Core Requirements

e Scope of Service

e Service Outcomes

The Out of Hospital Joint Review Group will focus on:
e Overseeing the review of current service delivery to understanding the starting point. This
will include:
o Understanding the variation in services at Place level
o ldentifying integration barriers and learning opportunities
o Sharing best practice between Places and/or Place-based Teams/PCNs
o Taking into consideration the 5 Provider Selection Regime criteria including:
1) Quality and innovation
2) Value
3) Integration, collaboration and service sustainability
4) Access, inequalities and disparities and choice
5) Social value
¢ Reviewing and identifying opportunities to expand Out of Hospital lead provider model to
support integration and remove Provider contract barriers
o Undertaking a review of national policy, local Place Plans and Care Collaborative
development changes to inform future core requirements eg. Fuller, Improving Lives, and
Discharge Frontrunner.
o Undertaking a review of current service Outcomes with view aligning to ICS and Place
outcomes, streamlining reporting and reducing overall complexity.
¢ Undertaking wider engagement from stakeholders to inform final recommendations

The Joint Review Group will report their findings to the Care Collaboratives in July 2023, who
in turn will develop the final recommendations for the ICB on the future commissioning
requirements. These will be implemented and embedded during the lifetime of this BCF plan.

Ageing Well Programme

Through the Ageing Well Joint Programme Board, activity is being coordinated to deliver
three key priorities in 2023-25. In Warwickshire, activity to deliver the ageing well
programme happens at the most appropriate footprint with some activity countywide, some
at place partnership level and some at PCN level. All Places across Warwickshire are
prioritising the ‘moderate to severe frailty cohort 2a’ as part of the case-finding for Proactive
Care.

Page 27



Page 16 of 36
Draft V0.4

Ageing Well programme

A national programme focussed on supporting people to stay healthy and well at home and reduce demand on emergency care

Urgent Community Response I Enhanced Health in Care Homes
+ 2 hour response to avoid unnecessary hospital * Proactive support for the health and wellbeing of
admission residents of care homes
* 8am to 8pm, 7 days a week * Personalised assessment and care planning
* Supporting common conditions {eg frailty and falls, *  Multi-disciplinary support

confusion, catheter care, reduced mobility, end of life) + Digitally enabled

+ Collaborative working with ambulance services

Proactive (Anticipatory) Care

* Proactive support for people living at home with
multiple long term conditions (eg diabetes, heart
condition, asthma, Parkinsons, dementia)

* Personalised assessment and care planning
* Multi-disciplinary support

+ Coordinated care

Recommissioning Integrated Community Equipment Service and Long-Term
Domiciliary Care

The integrated community equipment service is being recommissioned, with a focus on
continuing to support discharges while retaining capacity for timely access to equipment that
supports prevention and enables people to live independently at home for longer. Work
continues with the current provider to improve access to service data and customer
feedback to drive service improvement and to increase recycling rates supporting greater
efficiency and sustainability of the service.

Arrangements for commissioning of long-term Domiciliary Care in Warwickshire are being
jointly reviewed, with new contracts planned from August 2024. The model required for long
term care will be co-produced and will respond to capacity and demand modelling which will
be informed by the emerging Community Recovery Service model for short term care.
Demographic and population health information produced through the Ageing Well Joint
Strategic Needs Analysis in 2023 will ensure the model responds to increasing ageing
population in the South of the County and the higher demand in the North for care
commissioned by the Council.

IBCF scheme delivery

As outlined above, during 2022 a detailed review of schemes funded through the iBCF was
undertaken jointly across Warwickshire. During 2023/24 we will continue to review the
effectiveness and efficiency of the schemes to support any changes in 2024/25. Appendix 2
outlines the list of schemes being progressed in 2023-25.

Joint Strategy Delivery

A number of joint strategies and action plans for Warwickshire (and Coventry) are in place or

have been developed in 2022-23, with delivery being supported during 2023 — 2025 through

the Better Together Programme. This includes:

o All Age Autism Strategy

e Live Well with Dementia Strategy

o End of Life Strategy, including working more broadly on compassionate communities by
linking with libraries and other community services.

e Suicide Prevention Strategy

Page 28



Page 17 of 36
Draft V0.4

Integrated Care Record

Having introduced an integrated care record, across social care and health, for adults in
2022/23, we now are planning to deliver an integrated care record for children on the same
basis in 2023/24.

Changes to the BCF for 2023 - 2025

To facilitate and support the priorities above the following changes to services commissioned
through the BCF are planned for 2023-25:

¢ Rehab at Home (Home Based Therapy) service will transfer to the Community Recovery
Service. The learning from the previous HBT service which was in place until 23 April
2023 has been used to help shape and design the new CRS service.

o The Stroke Early Supported Discharge Care service continues to provide support for
patients with low level needs requiring neuro therapy and domiciliary care but is now
accessed via the Community Recovery Service as of April 2023.

e D2A Pathway 2 bed-based continues to be commissioned countywide with a flexible
approach to increase capacity to support winter pressures. Some of the extra bedded
pressures are also supported by the Adult Social Care Discharge Fund. These services
are commissioned by integrated commissioners working across WCC and SWFT as the
NHS out of hospital provider on behalf of the ICB and involve rehab from NHS teams
and domiciliary care commissioned by the local authority.

® More people were supported to receive reablement starting on the same day as
discharge in 2022-23, by expanding the commissioned hospital to home service. Further
developments are planned in 2023-25 to respond to the findings of the service evaluation
and to ensure a more equitable coverage across the County.

Key Line of Enquiry: How the plan will contribute to Equality and
reducing Health Inequalities

Warwickshire has a robust approach to health inequalities that capitalises on the strategic
and operational expertise of our cross-sector partners. Taking action to reduce inequalities
at a system, county, place and organisational level occurs through the following
mechanisms:

o Coventry and Warwickshire Integrated Care Strategy and associated draft Joint
Forward Plan (with associated alignment to NHSE Core20+5)
Coventry and Warwickshire ICS Health Inequalities Strategic Plan
Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2026
Director of Public Health Annual Report 2022
Evidence and data gathering through Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)
Warwickshire County Council Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA)

System Approach (Coventry and Warwickshire)

System partners benefit from our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) approach when
researching and targeting population health inequality, and commissioning and joint
commissioning activities and services. By placing health inequality at the heart of our long-
term approach to population health and wellbeing, we

drive the foundational principle of equity through every aspect of system working. During
2023-24, a Healthy Ageing JSNA will be produced, focussed on the over 65 population in
Warwickshire and will be used to inform a range of service developments to support people
to live independently at home and to provide right care at the right time in the right place.

Page 29



Page 18 of 36
Draft V0.4

We share an Integrated Care System (ICS) with Coventry, and all strategy, prioritisation and
implementation of work is endorsed through it. The Integrated Care System (ICS) has four
core aims:

Improve outcomes in population health and healthcare

Tackle inequalities in outcomes, experience and access to services

Enhance productivity and value for money

Help the NHS support broader social and economic development

PON~

The Coventry and Warwickshire ICS Strategy outlines how, in order to be a system that
effectively identifies, tracks and takes action to reduce entrenched inequalities in health and
the wider determinants, we will take a population health approach to starting, living and
ageing well. The Health and Wellbeing Strategies for Coventry and Warwickshire formed the
basis for the ICS Strategy. This has helped to make sure that reducing inequalities in health
is integral to the work of the ICS.

The Health Inequalities Strategic Plan for Coventry and Warwickshire (2022-2027) provides
an important basis to shape our work. The Plan sets out our commitments on how we are
going to reduce health inequalities in Coventry and Warwickshire, taking account of the
delivery of key elements of the NHS Long Term Plan and Core20PLUSS5. We have a
Population Health Inequalities and Prevention Board, supported by the Inequalities Delivery
Group that come together to strategically align and drive forward this work, which is also
being supported by the creation of two new Health Inequalities Programme Manager posts
aligned to Place.

As part of our CORE20+5 approach we will be working to improve the health of those in the
20% most deprived lower super output areas (LSOAS), plus inclusion health groups
including gypsies, roma and traveller communities, people experiencing homelessness, and
newly arrived communities. Within Warwickshire, each place-based Health and Wellbeing
Board Partnership has selected additional ‘plus’ groups to focus on:

o Warwickshire North — people living in poor housing conditions

¢ Rugby — transient communities

o South Warwickshire — rural poverty and older people living in income deprivation

Services and schemes commissioned through the BCF will support delivery of the ICS
Strategy and the Health Inequalities Strategic Plan, and in particular two of the Major
Inequalities Work Programmes:

o Long term conditions and prevention — aims to ensure equitable access,
experience and outcomes for CORE20+5 groups and ethnic minorities

o Urgent care development — aims to increase access to alternatives to emergency
departments and reduce admission and attendances for high intensity users linked to
CORE20+5

In addition to the major inequalities work programmes, the BCF supports a tackling health
inequalities approach through the work of the Housing Partnership and the links to Assistive
Technology; delivery of virtual wards, as within the Digital Transformation Strategy; by taking
a strengths / asset based approach; and a focus on self-management, social prescribing and
personal health budgets, as within the personalisation enabling workstream.

County level (Warwickshire)

In acknowledgment of the rising cost of living, Warwickshire’s Director of Public Health
Annual Report 2022 focused on health and the high cost of living. The report highlighted
how certain groups of people are likely to experience the rising cost of living more acutely
than others, and that they are likely to be those who already face disadvantage and
experience inequalities in health outcomes and the wider determinants of health. Themes

Page 30


https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/s28646/ICS%20-%20Appendix%201.pdf
https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-3190
https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-3190

Page 19 of 36
Draft V0.4

explored within the report include housing and heating, food and eating and transport and
travel. Some of the recommendations from these key themes will relate to the work of the
BCF (most relevant recommendations are outlined below):

Overarching recommendation: that key anchor organisations,
including local authorities, NHS partners and universities focus
expertise and capacity on building an inclusive, healthy and
sustainable Warwickshire. To do this, all partners should focus on:

o Policy: adopting, and sharing learning from, a Health in All
Policies approach (link to webpage) and using Health Equity
Assessment Tool (HEAT) to reduce inequalities in health

o Access to services: consider opportunities to increase
accessibility to healthcare services for those who will
experience the impact of the rising cost of living most acutely

Housing recommendation: that housing, planning and health leads
work together to prevent ill health caused by poor housing and living
conditions. This includes a commitment to building regulations
including preventing new homes from being built with an Energy
Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of less than C and working with
private and public landlords to ensure existing homes have an EPC of
C or above, and are mould free

Transport recommendation: that transport planners and health
partners work together to improve transport links for those living in
areas with more rural isolation, deprivation and where rates of long-
term conditions and access to transport links are poor.

Within Warwickshire County Council HEAT has been embedded into the Equality Impact
Assessment (EQIA), and therefore any EQIA form that is completed has a strong health
inequalities section. Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) is embedded in the commissioning
cycle, giving assurance that spend and service targeting takes account of people and
places at higher risk of falling outside traditional interventions.

Warwickshire’s Health and Wellbeing Strateqy for 2021-26 sets out three short

term priorities. Tackling inequalities in health is a golden thread throughout the Strategy,
however to reflect the greater focus on inequalities which occurred during the pandemic
period, reducing health inequalities is listed explicitly as one of the three short term priorities
of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB). A public facing ‘Monitoring Health Inequalities in
Warwickshire’ dashboard has been developed to monitor inequalities over time. This
dashboard has been developed to display indicators around the HWBB priorities and is
aligned to the King’s Fund Population Health Framework.

The Better Together Programme is one of the local delivery programmes which supports
the addressing of inequalities in the HWB Strategy and pilots new admission avoidance
schemes. This is evidenced by the IBCF funding for the Community Outreach Offer for
Adults with Autism, Dementia services, Carers support, an increasing focus on social
prescribing and homelessness. Housing inequalities which impact health continue to be a
key focus within our delivery plan, and the BCF Housing Action Plan outlines this.

Place (North, Rugby, South)

Warwickshire consists of three geographical places - Warwickshire North, Rugby, and South
Warwickshire. Each place has its own distinct partnership mechanism and all place-based
partnerships report into HWBB. The role of the place-based partnerships is to develop and
oversee tailored activity related to the delivery of the three HWBB priorities. Drawing on
place-based data and intelligence from place partners is key to this and supports a focus on
those who experience the greatest inequalities in health within each local area, thereby
providing a more nuanced approach than focusing on Warwickshire as a whole. The local

Page 31


https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/healthandwellbeingstrategy
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiM2ZmZmJlYTYtYjgwNy00N2NlLWFmNzgtZGYwYTVhODAxMmQ5IiwidCI6Ijg4YjBhYTA2LTU5MjctNGJiYi1hODkzLTg5Y2MyNzEzYWM4MiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection178c96c56c43d35e6424
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiM2ZmZmJlYTYtYjgwNy00N2NlLWFmNzgtZGYwYTVhODAxMmQ5IiwidCI6Ijg4YjBhYTA2LTU5MjctNGJiYi1hODkzLTg5Y2MyNzEzYWM4MiIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection178c96c56c43d35e6424

Page 20 of 36
Draft V0.4

JSNA and Health Inequalities Dashboard is routinely fed into the place-based partnerships
to support forward planning for each place and to make sure that the most up-to-date
information is factored into local decision making.

What are the health inequalities and challenges in Warwickshire?

Overall health outcomes for Warwickshire are above the national average but they vary, with
residents in more deprived parts living shorter lives and spending a greater proportion of
their lives in poor health. In less deprived parts of the county males can expect to live over 9
years longer and females 5 years longer than those in more deprived areas. People are
spending more of their longer lives in poor health — 17.6 years for men and 19.3 years for
women. There are avoidable differences in health outcomes, linked to living and work
conditions as well as lifestyle choices including smoking, alcohol consumption, nutrition, and
physical activity.

Around one in four adults experience mental health problems, but the county has seen an
improvement in the suicide rate. Levels of suicide in Warwickshire have historically been
higher than the England average. However, following a large programme of work aimed at
suicide prevention, local rates are now in line with the England average.

Warwickshire has a growing older population. There are more people over the age of 65
than the national average (20.6% in Warwickshire and 18.5% for England) and those over
85 are expected to almost double from around 16,600 in 2018 to 30,100 in 2040.

Although many people remain well, active and independent during later life, for others,
increasing age brings an increasing chance of frailty, long-term medical conditions,
dementia, terminal illness, dependency and disability (including falls). Those from certain
ethnic minority groups and lower socio-economic backgrounds are more likely to experience
inequalities in ageing well.

How is our plan contributing to reducing health inequalities in Warwickshire?

The BCF Plan is a vehicle for articulating how we will use system, county and place level
mechanisms to cement health inequality work in strategic and operational planning. The
Director of Public Health is a key member of the Joint Commissioning Board which oversees
the Better Together Programme and BCF Plan, and this means that there is a robust
connection between decision making bodies, allocation of BCF funds to address
inequalities and frontline services. The Director of Public Health also chairs the
Warwickshire Care Collaborative consultative forum where responsibility for the BCF will
transition during 2023 — 2025. ‘Live’ learning about health inequality impacts on
disproportionately disadvantaged groups features in discussions and decision making. This
supports triangulation of the data held at system level and has a clear influence over BCF
spend in recognition that pressures vary from place to place. We are continuing to make the
connections with emerging tools and approaches across the system, as well as seeing the
benefits of their use in the process of commissioning activity to meet needs.

An example of this is the use of the Equality Impact Assessment in the design of the

new Home Based Therapy pathway, which was designed with additional capacity in the
north of the county (where there are higher numbers of falls and fractures as well as higher
levels of deprivation and poorer health outcomes comparatively to the south of the county),
and enhancement of support for the wider determinants of health such as self-neglect
around Hoarding. Commissioning additional capacity in the north to meet demand and
address identified inequalities has been replicated in the design of the Community Recovery
Service.

Additionally, the Better Together (BCF) programme links with and contributes to other
programmes of work to tackle inequalities:

Page 32



Page 21 of 36
Draft V0.4

o Coventry and Warwickshire COVID-19 Health Impact Assessment 2020

¢ Warwickshire COVID-19 Recovery Plans e.g. implementation of the Integrated Care
Record Project Warwickshire County Council Plan 2020-25 e.g. enhanced Discharge to
Assess model and reducing delays to discharge

e NHS Long Term Plan — ‘Chapter 2: More NHS action on prevention and health
inequalities’

National Condition 2 Implementing BCF Policy Objective 1: Enabling people

to stay well, safe and independent at home for longer

Planning Requirement 4: A demonstration of how the services the area
commissions will support people to remain independent for longer,
and where possible support them to remain in their own home

Key Line of Enquiry: Overarching approach to supporting people to
remain independent at home

Integrated programmes of work across commissioning and operational delivery are well
established in Warwickshire and throughout 2023-25 will continue to develop services and
support that enable people to remain independent at home, as outlined below.

The Joint Ageing Well Programme has three priority workstreams:

¢ Improvements delivered for Urgent Community Response (UCR).

o Warwickshire has one of the highest levels of UCR activity nationally and over
82% of referrals were responded to within 2 hours. The UCR team are well
established, and services are embedded 8am-8pm 7 days a week. UCR provide
over 1000 2-hour responses per month, as well as offering a same day response
where 2-hour response is not clinically appropriate. SWFT were the highest
number of referrals in Jan by a single provider, and account for up to a quarter of
the Midlands number. During 2023-25 the focus will be on maintaining this high
performance and increasing capacity to meet increased demand as per the
capacity and demand plan. Further innovation is planned, including developing
pathways with pendant alarm companies, greater use of point of care testing
equipment and exploring a direct pathway into radiology.

o Recruitment into UCR services was ongoing during 2022/23, increasing overall
capacity to respond to increasing referral numbers. Demand and capacity
modelling is now underway to ensure the workforce is aligned to projected
service demand in 23/24. Recruitment into clinical practitioner and advanced
clinical practitioner posts has enhanced the ability of the service to respond to
more complex patients. A ‘grow your own’ approach has been used where there
is limited established workforce, with developmental posts implemented.

o In Warwickshire, all referral routes are freely available. Care home referrals are
supported by remote monitoring which is managed by SWFT’s SPoA clinical
triage function. Referrals direct from patients and carers are also accepted, for
both known and unknown patients. The team have been working closely with
999 and 111 to establish relationships and build communication lines. Both
services now have access to the WMAS CAD portal which allows the electronic
referral of 999 cases appropriate to UCR services. Referrals have been further
increased with the commencement of twice daily calls with the WMAS Clinical
Validation Team, who share live access to the ambulance stack. Appropriate
cases are discussed between the teams and once accepted can then be referred
via the CAD portal. This provides earlier intervention of cases and an earlier

Page 33



Page 22 of 36
Draft V0.4

opportunity for UCR to support patients instead of their being an ambulance
dispatched.

o Connections are being built with local falls alarm service providers including local
authorities with a view to progressing development of clearer referral routes direct
to UCR. This is early development and will need to be progressed within the
context of fall alarm provider response policies.

o The Enhanced Health in Care Homes workstream collaborates closely with local care
homes and during 2022/23 has focussed on consistency across the County. This has
included developing tools and information to support earlier identification of deteriorating
residents and better management of falls, improved remote monitoring, and producing a
recommend health training guide covering the health topics most likely to impact on care
home residents. Plans for 2023-25 include promoting awareness and engagement with
hospital discharge and admission process, further support and training for the workforce
around care planning, common conditions, falls and end of life, and improving the use of
data to target resources. Stronger links with the End of Life programme have been
established to support this.

e Places have been engaged with the Proactive Care workstream since its launch in 2022
and all three places have agreed to focus on the moderately to severely frail cohort, with
prioritisation of people who are frequent users of unplanned care. A health inequalities
approach is being adopted aligned to the core 20+ 5 model and the workstream is
currently focussed on development of case finding, metrics and supporting data. Pilots
will be mobilised in each of the places during the first half of 2023/24 and links to the
Fuller Stocktake and the development of integrated neighbourhood teams have been
acknowledged will be incorporated within the development of pilot schemes.

The system continues to personalise care and develop asset-based approaches, for
example Strengths Based Practice across Adult Social Care within Warwickshire County
Council and Person-Centred Care in the NHS Out of Hospital Collaborative by South
Warwickshire University NHS Foundation Trust. Out of Hospital Place Based (Community)
Teams are aligned to PCNs, ensuring that community assets from local areas (e.g. social
prescribers, voluntary/community sector, housing) are involved when making decisions
about health/care.

The use of digital tools and Telehealth or Assistive Technology in the community is
promoted by NHS community and Adult Social Care including Care Homes to benefit both
health and social care outcomes and early intervention are key to our offer e.g., Docobo as
part of our carers offer for Dementia patients in their own homes. Further joint work to
develop commissioning frameworks to enable rapid adoption of innovative assistive
technology solutions is planned in 2023/24. Funding to support digital switchover has been
allocated within the disabled facilities grant.

As a system, the ‘Tribe’ tool is being evaluated as a potential tool to support people to
remain independent for longer in their own homes, where a person/family/informal carer can
enter the support requirements and a list of providers who might be able to support, as well
as volunteers are matched. Further work is planned in 2023/24 to explore how the Tribe tool
can support the integrated discharge frontrunner.

Warwickshire County Council jointly with Coventry City Council are leading the delivery of
the local Dementia Strategy. This strategy: Coventry and Warwickshire’s Living Well with
Dementia Strategy 2022 - 2027 highlights a number of areas for improvement priorities
aligned to the national Well Pathway for Dementia and identifies the following 6 priority areas
for the local system. 1. Reducing the risk of developing dementia, 2. Diagnosing Well, 3.
Supporting Well, 4. Living Well, 5. End of life care, 6. Training Well. An estimated 11,500

Page 34



Page 23 of 36
Draft V0.4

people in Coventry and Warwickshire live with dementia, but only around 56% of these have
a formal diagnosis. This work is overseen by the emerging Mental Health Collaborative.

Additional night-time support needs have now been extended to more Extra Care Housing
facilities, commissioned proportionate to the level of needs in the scheme and more person
centred, with resources targeted flexibly, to reduce the risk of hospital admissions for
schemes with high care hours. One of the ways that this is being achieved is supporting with
hospital admissions due to falls. UCR have expanded their equipment to include emergency
rising cushions in all teams countywide. This has enabled the implementation of a falls pick
up service within UCR, which allows referrals to be diverted from WMAS where a resident is
unable to get up but has no injury or only minor injury. This reduces demand on ambulance
services while providing a more timely response to patients in under 2 hours. Since full
launch in December, an increase in the number of falls responses has been seen in UCR,
with over 20 each month aside from February.

Business as usual services funded through the core/base BCF and delivered through our
BCF Plan which ‘enable people to stay well, safe and independent at home for longer
include:

e Domiciliary Care - continues to provide support to at home that have been identified as
requiring some support with intimate personal care tasks and daily living activities. A
geographical zonal model is in operation which comprises of a number of providers
operating in a specific zone with an allocated percentage of business.

¢ Warwickshire has a well performing reablement service that has robust evidence of the
difference it makes to people. All customers have identified goals and outcomes agreed
at the start of their therapy programme. 71.4% of customers who exit the Reablement
Service require no further ongoing long-term support from social care. The team have
developed an In-House Therapy Outcome Measure (TOM) app to analyse outcomes
with our customers, which evidences that our interventions are having a positive impact
in the lives of our customers. Customer feedback indicates satisfaction is consistently
over 90%. Comments are also analysed and where possible improvement are made, for
example the introduction of messages to customers informing them of the time the
carers will arrive.

e The Integrated Community Equipment Service — which continues to develop and evolve
to ensure the service can equally support people already in the community, as well as
those being discharged from hospital. This service is being recommissioned in 2023,
with the new service designed to respond to these challenges.

e The Falls Prevention pathway and single point of access for support for people identified
as moderate and high risk of falls, implemented as part of last year's BCF plan.

o The HEART Housing Equipment Assessment and Response Team (refer to pages 28-
29)

Key Line of Enquiry: What is the learning from the intermediate care
capacity and demand planning section of the plan to ensure improved
performance against this objective

Capacity for urgent community response has been increased in 2023-24 to enable more
referrals into the service in line with targeted increases. Work to streamline referrals has also
been initiated to adjust criteria to ensure the service is targeting people who need a two-hour
response. While reablement service capacity is not being increased, the introduction of the
Community Recovery Service focussed on people being discharged from hospital will enable
more reablement capacity to support people already at home. Similarly additional capacity
for the Integrated Community Equipment Service to support discharges through CRS will
enable more of the core service capacity to target preventative activity.

Page 35



Page 24 of 36
Draft V0.4

In response to the workforce challenges that many local areas are experiencing, a number of
key pieces of work to attract, retain and grow the health care sector been agreed by the local
system. The Learning and Development Partnership for providers funded from the IBCF
supports this activity e.g. provider workforce recruitment campaigns and retention through
training and support.

Key Line of Enquiry: How will BCF funded activity support delivery of this
objective

The detail in the Planning Template clearly sets out the number of schemes funded through
the Better Care Fund and IBCF which support people to remain at home independently for
longer. These range from core services in the ‘base BCF’ such as Domiciliary Care,
Reablement and Integrated Community Equipment, to schemes funded from the Improved
Better Care Fund which support this objective, including carers support and respite,
occupational therapists in the community, end of life rapid response, falls prevention,
additional support to care homes and extra care housing, workforce development and
specialist support for community providers. As key strategies within the prevention agenda
for the system the IBCF also provides funding to support delivery of the autism and dementia
strategies.

By delivering this range of schemes, the local ambition is to achieve a 15% reduction in the
standardised rate of avoidable admissions compared to 2022/23 and a 6.8% reduction in the
standardised rate of emergency admissions to hospital following falls compared to 2021/22,
which would bring Warwickshire into the upper quartile nationally for performance in these
areas. The target for rate of admissions to residential and nursing homes is based on
2022/23 activity and demand is expected to be consistent in 2023/24.

Key Line of Enquiry: Meeting Care Act Responsibilities

BCF funding and iBCF activity support Warwickshire to deliver on our Care Act
responsibilities. Similarly to previous years, £190k has been allocated from the IBCF
scheme 11 to deliver Care Act Responsibilities relating to acute based service costs for
hospital-based advocacy, a contribution to maintain the block Independent Mental Health
Advocacy (IMCA) provision and also provide SPOT IMCA provision. Similar to previous
years £5.2M is allocated from the Base BCF — minimum NHS contribution for Reablement.
This is detailed in the Planning Template. As noted below, Care Act assessments for carers
are undertaken on our behalf by Caring Together Warwickshire.

Key Line of Enquiry: Support for Unpaid Carers

The All-Age Carers Contract was awarded to Carers Trust Heart of England and went live in

October 2022. The service branded Caring Together Warwickshire comprises:

¢ Universal service— includes information and advice via a freephone support, digital
support via website and signposting and community partnerships to support carers. This
includes support for parent carers. The new branding and feel of the website
www.caringtogetherwarwickshire.org.uk was coproduced with carers. Functionality
elements of the website are in development.

¢ Targeted Adults — for adults caring for adults, advisors provide 121 support including
Statutory Carers Assessment and Support Planning (including direct payments)

o Targeted Young Carers — specialist advisors provide 121 support, transition support for
young people as well as Carers Assessment and support planning

Page 36


http://www.caringtogetherwarwickshire/

Page 25 of 36
Draft V0.4

A Joint All Age Carer Action plan is currently being developed to determine the long term
objectives and short term plans to support carers better. This will include areas of joint
working with Coventry, improving the digital offer as well as review of access to breaks for
carers.

BCF funding has been invested within the contract model to enhance the core services and
increase support for unpaid carers, which includes;

Innovation Fund — Carers/providers are supported to access funding to promote
innovation, local carer networks and place-based activities that support and maintain carers
wellbeing. Supporting with initial investment to support carer groups - activities and
innovation. During year 1 of the contract 19 community organisations have been awarded
up to £3,000 to support. Initiatives includes activities for young carers of those with
disability, day service provision to provide breaks for carers and group activities for carers.
Urgent and Planned Breaks - Carers can access up to 36 hours of replacement care to
support with short breaks. This will be reviewed during 2023/24.

Digital support — funding via IBCF to support the West Midlands region wide buy-in to
digital offer to carers.

Coproduction and Comms — To support ongoing coproduction and continued
engagement with carers, to support service development, peer review and the All Age
Carers Action Plan.

Direct payments — Supporting the funding of one-off payments to carers to support

them with maintaining their own wellbeing following a carers assessment.

Service Contingency — Retained for discretionary use, service pressures, service pilots

Further work specifically to support unpaid carers through development of the wider out of
hospital Community Recovery Service will continue during 23/24.

wealth) and charge based on community care charging protocols (which

Budget Agreed Planned
Spend
Carer Breaks — Respite Base BCF — minimum £1,079,845
NHS contribution
All Age Carers Contract Model Aligned adult social £530,821
care budget
Carers Support IBCF — W-IBCF £296,000
Scheme 10
Respite Charging Enables WCC to cease charging based on IBCF — W-IBCF £250,000
standard residential care protocols (which have regard to property Scheme 17

do not consider property wealth). This change is proven to encourage
respite take up and therefore prevent or reduce the likelihood of carer
breakdown.

Total £2,156,666

Planning Requirement 3: A strategic, joined up plan for Disabled

Facilities Grant (DFG) spending

Key Line of Enquiry: A strateqgic approach to using housing support,

including DFG funding that supports independence at home

We can confirm that the total Disabled Facilities Grant of £5,124,786 has been pass-ported
in full to the five borough and district councils in Warwickshire.

North Warwickshire £794,560
Nuneaton and Bedworth £1,652,119

Page 37



Page 26 of 36

Draft V0.4
Rugby £717,236
Stratford-on-Avon £961,444
Warwick £999, 427
Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) £5,124,786

The strategic approach to bringing together health, social care and housing

As outlined above, the Housing Partnership Board, a sub-group of the Better Together
Programme is the key delivery vehicle for the housing and homelessness related elements
of the Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2026 and Strategy Delivery Plan
for 2021-23. The Housing Partnership is committed to delivering a joined-up

approach across housing, social care and health to improve

outcomes and reduce inequalities in health outcomes.

The Housing Partnership Board maintains oversight of the following housing related activity
which is delivered in partnership to support people to remain within their own homes for as
long as possible or transitioning into more appropriate housing to maintain their
independence by:

o Developing an integrated approach to Housing, Social Care and Health where housing
solutions are embedded into health and social care pathways and efficiencies and
effectiveness are maximised.

o Prevention and early intervention activities to enable people to remain happy, healthy
and safe within their own homes and make more suitable housing choices before the
point of crisis.

o Supporting people to smoothly transition into more appropriate housing.

o Improving choice and access to appropriate support, advice and information.

o Providing Housing Adaptations through effective use and monitoring of the Disabled
Facilities Grant.

o Co-ordinating homelessness prevention activities to identify collaborative working
opportunities to support delivery of the District and Borough Council’s statutory duties
and locality Homelessness Strategies.

o Implementing the housing related elements under Change 9 of the High Impact Change
Model.

The HEART service was set up in 2016 to deliver improved health and social care outcomes
and maximise people’s independence in their own homes through:

o effective use of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG),

prevention activity, including advice and information,

provide equipment and major / minor adaptations,

emergency support, and

in 2020/21 expansion to include a countywide handy person service.

In Warwickshire, under the Regulatory Reform Order 2002 legislation, the DFG has also
continued to be used for wider purposes. Warwickshire Housing Authorities have agreed
harmonised financial assistance policies under an RRO, with additional financial assistance
for removing category 1 housing hazards (Warm and Safer Homes Grants), small home
safety grants, hospital discharge grants and enhanced help for DFG’s above the statutory
maximum.

Governance of the HEART Service is through a multi-agency HEART Board and the
partners have agreed to renew the partnership agreement for a further 5 years from April
2023. Following the independent review of the HEART Service and supporting governance
arrangements, Paul Smith, Director of Foundations was appointed as an Independent Chair
of the HEART Board in April 2022. The HEART Strategic Development Plan is reviewed
and agreed each year by partners and in 2023-25 will look to build on the improvements

Page 38



Page 27 of 36
Draft V0.4

made around development of a self-serve model to support more prevention activity and
improve access, implementation of a new ICT system to improve speed of processing and
updating the Housing Assistance Policy. Funding has been made available within the DFG
to support digital switchover between 2023 and 2025 to ensure assistive technology,
including pendant alarms continue to be effective in supporting people to remain at home
independently.

Activities of the Housing Partnership Board

The joint (health, social care, VCS and housing) activities for 2023-25 are outlined in the
Housing Partnership action plan. Key joint areas of focus and changes for 2023-25 relate to
addressing health inequalities through housing as outlined in the Health Inequalities
Strategic Plan for Coventry and Warwickshire and include:
o Housing support for refugees and asylum seeker / migrant communities
o Green homes: poor housing, damp and cold — support/grants and accessible
preventative information
o Implementation of the Transforming care, Learning Disabilities and Autism Housing
Plan
o Increasing access to Specialised Housing Schemes for adults with Learning or
Physical Disabilities
o Further work to implement the safe accommodation duties
o Re-design of Housing Related Support services, and
o Implementation of a Young Person’s Protocol re: homelessness and young people

as well as for example, training for acute ward and discharge teams on Duty to Refer and
homeless support and homeless prevention support as part of Early Discharge Planning
(High Impact Changes 1 and 9).

National Condition 3: Implementing BCF Policy Objective 2:

Providing the right care in the right place at the right time

Planning requirement 6: A demonstration of how the services the area
commissions will support provision of the right care in the right place
at the right time

Key Line of Enquiry: Overarching approach to supporting people to receive
the right care in the right place at the right time

An integrated approach to commissioning and operational delivery to support people to be
discharged to their usual place of residence is well embedded within Warwickshire. The
‘Home First’ approach, commissioning and delivery model which is in place across
community NHS services and the local authority, aligned to our Discharge to Assess
commissioning and operational model is evidenced by strong performance against the
‘discharge to normal place of residence BCF metric’ (95.5% in 22/23 for all ages, 96.7% for
minority ethnic, 95.3% for 61-90 and 90.7% for 81+).

The local authority is the lead commissioner for the Out of Hospital Collaborative. This is
through a joint funded Lead Commissioner post with South Warwickshire University NHS
Foundation Trust. This post also leads on the commissioning of Discharge to Assess
Services for Pathways 1 & 2. Commissioning of Pathway 3 continues to be shared between
the local authority and the ICB.

Page 39



Page 28 of 36

Draft V0.4

Warwickshire has a well-established D2A offer that is collaborative in nature. It is built on
principles of supporting people that have had an acute hospital stay to the most appropriate
place, to ensure their recovery needs and ability to rehabilitate is maximised. D2A services
in the South of the county have been in place since 2013. The following principles underpin
the development of the D2A offer:

e Services and pathways are designed to support individuals to transfer home to their
own bed with appropriate support wherever possible.

o D2A services will be commissioned to enable flexibility and surge options by ensuring
close working with the market and collaboration with system partners.

¢ Allindividuals with an identified ability to improve their skills, functioning and
independence will be offered appropriate support to enable them to achieve this.

o Opportunities to jointly plan and deliver services will be taken as we move forward to
the Integrated Care System seeking to address the current complexity and difference
within the D2A offer.

o The number of different services and pathways in Warwickshire will be streamlined
and easy to understand and access from both a patient and staff perspective.

Warwickshire can evidence consistently strong performance against the national Discharge
to Assess metrics:

2022/23
% patients All Age (Warks patients only) 65+ (Warks patients only)
discharged | National UHCW | National | SWFT | GEH UHCW
to D2A SWFT | GEH (Warks D2A (Warks
Target patients) | Target patients)
PO 85% 92% | 84.58% | 88.82% 50% 85.6% | 77.97% | 80.51%
P1 12% 6.2% | 1091% | 7.25% 45% 11.1% | 15.53% | 12.70%
P2 2% 1.7% | 3.31% 3.20% 4% 3% 4.73% 5.47%
P3 1% 01% | 1.19% 0.74% 1% 02% | 1.76% 1.33%

Warwickshire is within the upper quartile nationally for discharge to usual place of residence
and the target for 2023/24 aims to maintain performance at this level. Similarly,
Warwickshire has consistently performed very highly with the proportion of older people who
are still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into reablement or rehabilitation
service. ‘Discharge to assess’ within Warwickshire has received national recognition for
good practice. A need for greater capacity within intermediate care has been identified to
provide rehabilitation at home and the Discharge Frontrunner Pilot, funded through the
Discharge Funding, will increase the overall capacity of community services to provide care
for more patients at home. Our vision is that within 5 years ALL people in an acute hospital,
who need further support to recover, will have access to effective therapeutic intermediate
care services within 24 hours of no longer needing to be in hospital.

The following are priorities for further developing the D2A offer in 23-25:

1. Full consideration of how individuals utilising short stay beds can access
rehabilitative support to enable them to maximise recovery and independence.

2. Increase understanding of customer experience and socio-economic factors that can
prevent timely exit from moving on beds. Redesign and retender extra care moving
on beds to ensure it aligns to operational demand and supports flow.

3. Greater focus on end of life with D2A demand being offset with other bedded offers
outside of the hospital and home-based alternatives.

4. Consideration of future joint plans for CHC assessment beds and continuing to
engage primary care as key partners to the delivery of CHC assessment beds and
to ensure there is adequate medical cover in the areas where this is required.

Page 40



Page 29 of 36
Draft V0.4

A key priority for Warwickshire over 2023 - 2025 as outlined in this plan is delivery of our
intermediate care frontrunner. The Community Recovery Service that is at the core of our
new offer is being funded through the Better Together Programme.

Key Line of Enquiry Assessment of progress against the High Impact
Change Model for Managing Transfers of care and summarised progress
against areas for improvement identified in 2022-23

Our operational delivery approach to improving outcomes for people being discharged from
hospital

The System Operational Discharge Delivery Group have also completed local joint
assessment against the National Hospital Discharge Policy each time this has been
refreshed and the latest version of the High Impact Change Model for managing transfers of
care. This is completed at a Warwickshire system and place level. There are four key follow
on actions relating to the Hospital Discharge Policy

Discharge Policy Planned HDG Actions Links to planned HICM

Requirement actions

Transfer of Care Hub e Daily Bronze calls happen at each of the Acute Change 3 — MDTs
Hospitals to discuss inpatients as a MDT to Change 4

facilitate timely discharges. Escalation process in
place as a System

e The Council’s Social Care and Support
Operations and People Strategy and Change 2 - Effective
Commissioning Teams have worked in Information Sharing
partnership with NHS organisations to deliver the | and System view of
Front Runner Pilot. Community Recovery Service | flow and blockages
(CRS). for hospital discharges. The pilot
commenced in April 2023.

e A Micro Commissioner role was introduced into
the Dom Care sourcing team, and this had a
significant impact on timely sourcing of support

e  Work continues on the Enhanced Discharge

Tracker
Single Coordinator / Point o The refinement and embedding of the electronic Change 1
of Contact single discharge referral continues to be
progressed across the System. Changes 3 and 4
e Streamlined access points into social care now in
place Change 4

e There has been a reduction in pathways under
pathway 1 for hospital discharges and
consequently a reduction in referral access
points

e Expansion of the therapy offer under the CRS
pilot since April 2023

Case Management e Embedded the Trusted Assessors for social care | Change 6 — Trusted

arrangements short term bedded support on Pathway 2 with our | Assessments to be
local care home providers and are currently extended wider than
reviewing the trusted assessment with just Care Homes
representation from our providers

More patients offered e Pilot of Community Recovery Service has Change 1 & 4

Rehab or Reablement enabled increased access to therapy. Changes 2 and 4

e Reablement continues to offer up to 6 weeks
reablement with customers and reporting ,an
average length of stay of 21 days. with 80.2%
achieving their outcomes and 70.9 % not needing
long term social care support

e Learning from review of D2A bedded capacity

Page 41



Page 30 of 36
Draft V0.4

Whilst there are examples of ‘Exemplary’ commissioning and operational activity in each
place and across the county, the overall High Impact Change Model self-assessment

identifies three key areas of focus, which are shown below.

Note: Change 8 is delivered via the Enhanced Health in Care Homes Ageing Well
Programme Workstream and Change 9 via the Housing Partnership Board.

Warwickshire High Impact
Change Model self-assessment

Not yet
established

Processes are
typically

Plans in place

Developed a strategy
and starting te

Established

Defined and standard
processes are in place,

Mature

Processes have been
tested across variable

Exemplary

Fully embedded within the
system and outcomes for

people reflect this, continual

undocumented and .
' impravement driven by

implement, however | repeatedly used, subject
EEEEEEEEEEEE to improvement over

inconsistent time

conditions over a period of
time, evidence of impact

o incremental and innovative
reactive manner beginning to show

changes

Change 1 - Early discharge
planning

Change 2 - Capacity and
Demand Planning

Change 3 - Multi-disciplinary
working (MDTs)

Change 4 - Home first Discharge
to Assess

Change 5 - Flexible Working
Patterns

Change 6 - Trusted assessment

Change 7 - Engagement and
Choice

Change 8 - Improved discharge
to care homes

Change 9 - Housing

As outlined in last year’s plan, capacity and demand modelling within community health and
social care services was undertaken to ensure as a system we are ‘providing the right
care in the right place at the right time’. This modelling has been refreshed and builds on
the place-based discharge dashboard (data shown by pathway and length of stay) available
for system use since the beginning of the pandemic and expanded in 2021 to include
community health and care services. Through dashboards established and managed by the
Better Together Programme resources, detailed data is shared across the system on length
of stay, outcomes, by age and ethnicity for exits from sub-pathways supporting discharge, to
more effectively manage flow into and out of community services and prevent blockages.
Further modelling will be informed by the Discharge Frontrunner Pilot throughout 2023/24 as
data systems are developed to monitor activity and impact.

Business as usual services funded through the core/base BCF and delivered through our

BCF Plan which provide ‘right care in the right place at the right time’ include:

o Domiciliary Care - continues to provide support to people leaving hospital and those
already at home that have been identified as requiring some support with intimate
personal care tasks and daily living activities. A geographical zonal model is in operation
which comprises of a number of providers operating in a specific zone with an allocated
percentage of business. Our domiciliary care market also supports the health pathways;
Home Based Therapy and Stroke. In 2021-22 there were high levels of people waiting
for placements, through robust partnership working and improvements to brokerage
funded through the BCF the system saw significant improvement over 2022-23, which
will be continued in 2023-25.

e The Integrated Community Equipment Service — which continues to develop and evolve
to meet on-going pressures both within the community and also to support discharges,
particularly due to the increased demand due to the C&W Accelerator site status to
reduce the NHS elective surgery backlog. This service is being recommissioned in
2023 with the new service designed to respond to these challenges.

e Short-term Moving on and Discharge to Assess Beds continue to provide pathways from
hospital to bed-based care with rehabilitation. Additional step-down beds were

Page 42



Page 31 of 36
Draft V0.4

commissioned over winter in 2022/23 to respond to increased demand through the ASC
discharge fund. Commissioning arrangements have been put in place to enable short
term bed capacity to be flexed to respond to demand and additional capacity will be
mobilised again through use of discharge funding in winter 2023-24.

How BCF funded activity supports safe, timely and effective discharge

The detail in the Planning Template clearly sets out the number of schemes funded through
the Better Care Fund and IBCF which support safe, timely and effective discharge to their
usual place of residence. These range from core services in the ‘base BCF’ such as Home
First; a contribution to Domiciliary Care; Moving on Beds; Integrated Community Equipment
etc to schemes funded from the Improved Better Care Fund which support implementation of
the High Impact Change Model e.g. Trusted Assessors for Care Homes; Brokerage Support
(Domiciliary Care Referral Team); Hospital Social Care Team Staff supporting an MDT
approach for Out of Area Patients, Frailty Units in ED and Discharge to Assess Beds; the
Hospital to Home Scheme and additional enhanced Moving on Beds. In addition, the
resources funded from IBCF scheme 30 supports delivery of discharge related improvement
activity, analysis and data on behalf of the C&W system.

The Hospital to Home Scheme delivered by Warwickshire Fire and Rescue Services also
supports re-admission prevention for the more vulnerable and frail patients discharged, by
including follow-on safe and well checks and falls risk assessments into their offer.

Hospital social prescribing will no longer be funded from BCF from April 2024 in recognition

of the opportunity to develop more efficient and joined up pathways with social prescribers in
PCNs. During 2023/24 a joined up social prescribing pathway for people in hospital will be
delivered, enabling the current hospital-based service to be decommissioned.

Planning Requirement 5: An agreement between ICBs and relevant
Local Authorities on how the additional funding to support discharge
will be allocated for ASC and community-based reablement capacity to
reduce delayed discharges and improve outcomes.

Key Line of Enquiry: Building additional social care and community-
based reablement capacity, maximising the number of hospital beds
freed up and delivering sustainable improvement for patients

In Warwickshire, we have committed to transforming our discharge to assess Pathway 1 by
streamlining previously disparate pathway 1 services such as Home-Based Therapy and
Stroke Early Supported Discharge. The aim is to implement a new intake service for any
person leaving hospital with a new or increased care need to be supported by a care at
home service. There will be access to suitable therapy interventions to support individuals’
outcomes and overall levels of independence. The new service will be called ‘community
recovery service’ (CRS) and will be commissioned via Warwickshire’s existing market of
contracted Domiciliary care provision.

A great deal of work has happened to mobilise the Community Recovery Service from April
2023 including:

¢ New arrangements for commissioning domiciliary support across the county to enable care
and support to start within 24 hours of people being referred.

o Bolstering the efficiency of therapy resource and increasing capacity so more individuals
have access to therapy alongside domiciliary care in line with their individual needs.

Page 43



Page 32 of 36
Draft V0.4

o Working with our community equipment service to support faster access to equipment to
support people to go home.

e Agreeing new operational processes for hospital discharge.

¢ Consolidating the various care at home pathways in existence (this will be staged over the
duration of the pilot) and introducing a single referral form and access point for the new
Community Recovery Service.

o Working through recording and data requirements so we can monitor impact and activity.

e Financial modelling of service set up and operation (and considering how we monitor
financial benefits of pilot).

¢ Communications plan for patients, staff and the public.

We expect the service to improve and increase people’s functional outcomes and will be
capturing outcome and experience information from people who access the service to support
improvement and assist evaluation. We will be testing out the impact of the new service on
hospital length of stay and bed days lost, use of D2A beds and the need for long term care
and support with the hope we can demonstrate individual, system and financial benefits.

Discharge funding will continue to support additional capacity for winter for short term beds,
enabling flexible capacity to be stood up and stood down in response to demand. Planned
capacity for short term beds is informed by the review of discharge funding in 2022/23.

Discharge Funding
2023/24 2024/25
WCC ICB WCC ICB
Community Recovery Service £1,002,363| £1,682,908 £1,670,605| £2,804,847
Short term residential placements| £1,119,299| £1,117,092 £1,865,498| £1,861,820
Total £2,121,662| £2,800,000| | £3,536,103| £4,666,667

Community Recovery Service Capacity projections per place

Using current activity levels* to project future need it is expected that the CRS service will
need to deliver the following hours per place area.

Place Zones Estimated number of hours required in each
place at week 6

Warwickshire North | 1,2, 3 1,776 Hours

Rugby 4 522 Hours

South Warwickshire | 5,6,7,8 1,260 Hours

*Activity levels are projected and may change throughout the pilot. Any adjustments around
block capacity will be managed with individual providers as detailed within the CRS Service
Specification.

Context and assumptions regarding required capacity

e This is a pilot and therefore this capacity will be tested during the pilot duration.

e The volume of hours recommended are a baseline only and there may be
fluctuations that are caused by external influences such as hospital pressures, a
peak in seasonal illnesses which result in increased hospital admittance rate,
more referrals being made into CRS than predicted — particularly those that are
currently being referred into a Pathway 2 service or permanent residential or
nursing care.

Page 44



Page 33 of 36

Draft V0.4

e We expect to monitor the capacity and demand closely throughout the life cycle
of the pilot and adjust the commissioning arrangements to meet any increased or

decreased demand.

o Flow throughout this pathway will be vital to ensure it can respond to demand and

give the required capacity to patients.

CRS expected costs April 2023 — March 2024

Table 1 - Overview of expected care costs for CRS pilot Year 1. 11th of April 2023 until

March 2024.
Community Recovery Service Costings
Annual
estimated
costs
Domcare Costs
South Warwickshire £1,374,072
North £1,934,900
Rughby £568,077
15% contingency £90,016
Total Domcare costs £3,967,065
Existing Therapy staffing costs (12mths as already in post) £436,914
Additional Therapy staffing costs £683,797
Other additional staffing costs (9mths) £397,862
Equipment costs (Millbrook) £77,428
Total cost £5,563,066
Funded by:
Agreed funding:
Front runner pilot funding £800,000
SC discharge funding £316,000
Development Fund draw down £1,430,000
South Castlebrook Re-design £331,795
Sub total £2,877,795
To be agreed:
% allocation from WCC 23/24 discharge funding £1,002,363
% allocation from ICB 23/24 discharge funding £1,682,908
Total Funding £5,563,066

Appendix 1 Care Collaborative Development Plan
Care Collaborative Development Plan: Stage 1 to Stage 2
1 ICB Strategic Commissioner

14 working

1.2 Refresh ‘agreed’ scope of services - update £ values for 23/24

1.3 with stakeholders

Page 45

ICB OD Strategic Commissioner Development Programme - eg. technical capability development for future ways of

Set strategic Priorities and Outcomes for UEC/OOH/CHC - linked to JFP commitments and developed in collaborations




Page 34 of 36
Draft V0.4

14

1.5
1.6
1.7
1.8
1.9

1.10

Reset ICB Governance: Update SORD, Establish Care Collaborative Committees
(Draft ToR - including ICB Exec membership and decision-making). Amend 'other' ICB Committees ToR to reflect
strategic role for UEC/OOH/CHC

Reflect new and developing governance arrangements in Section 75's as appropriate, e.g., BCF for 23/24
Patient and Stakeholder voice - engagement on Future Model, and Service Developments

Agree resourcing model for Care Collaboratives for Stage 2

Develop and Agree Joint Working Agreement eg. how will matrix working work?

Staff Engagement

Agree future phasing for collaborative (geographical and thematic) delegation from 24/25

2.2
23
24
25
2.6

27

Reset system-wide groups/forums/groups to accommodate Care Collaboratives programmes CHC/OOH/UEC - eg.
Transformation Board/Discharge Front Runner/Improving Lives - including plan to consolidate groups to reduce overlap

Agree Road Map for other collaboratives and timeline- Phase 2, Phase 3 etc
Agree Care Collaborative relationship with Mental Health and LDA Collaboratives
Agree Care Collaborative relationship with Acute Provider Collaborative

Agree Care Collaborative relationship with Primary Care Collaborative

Agree Care Collaborative relationship with Providers

System-wide working OD Programme eg., how to set the right conditions to enable collaboration ie. System maturity
matrix

3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8

Align Care Collaborative Consultative Forum Terms of Reference for future state

Review and refresh Care Collaborative Membership and roles and responsibilities in preparation for transfer to
committee status

Agree Care Collaborative MOU to include - Decision Making, Conflicts of Interest, Risk/Gain Share approach, joint
working arrangements etc

Agree Place & Care Collaborative relationship - based on the learning from Warwickshire North Pathfinder Programme,
how does Place Lead Provider model work

Review design of Place arrangements and structures eg. interface with wider determinants of health and/or relationship
with Committee

Care Collaborative OD Development - supporting the partnership to maximise effectiveness

Develop commissioning capability - eg. Establish regular Finance/Quality/Performance reporting, Population Health
Management tools etc

Implement the Warwickshire elements of the Foundation Group provider collaborative innovator

4.1
4.2

4.4

4.5

Functions options appraisal: Strategic Commissioner role v Care Collaborative tactical commissioner (Tiles Diagram)
Define capability requirements

Understand resource availability within the ICB and wider system, undertake skills mapping against future capability
requirements

Develop Care Collaborative Operating Model options appraisal - what resource sits where? Best value for money?
Commissioning Host options?

Develop technical capability for future ways of working - eg. Population Health Management

Page 46



Page 35 of 36

Draft V0.4

WARWICKSHIRE - LIST OF IBCF SCHEMES FOR 202324 15,132
Dulcome | idess il | Sommary of schem J '
candition E000s
imclude ackditenal gt n ity Sanars brnepiiall wrtEryn s s direcly sspeortny dochangs end Ao .07
Heuprtal Lorsl Care
W-BCF 1 —— Sorwl Carw ke worony = S 5507 T acmrt St T2z
-
! WHBCEF I | Housng Hosprtal Leson [Howeey Fosstal Lescn 0o worissy o USON S Drosa, G253, SRTT and O [
] W-BCF 3 ptal Souprtal B word sreariry WaTecE 140
Prescrbing
i W-BCF 4 Imobed Svsnumanh | §abes Assussrs SO 168
f TS TN il FSe— 85
Taam
WABCF & | Hesipitial ta Feme ﬂmb\“mmmhmmmmn i i a entercement o befe and Veell
e, trw el crewertor [T Us s Dol Soensreets ErpiEreetes st of Sw Fals Prevenbon progect
l iR R 5 M e o Bty or B Mgy arwa e ] eriuroes MR oy honies peteri. to provede sooal care and housng eleted
= . _F o
e KE Contract ncreenen:  [Cowen M8 rfietcoery coud mormsman ety S0 et MO S T ITETES . O STTRSA BRI, Incredees 0
‘ [ = 1] hEaing comb noLsEyg B ermort Sree nebestoe et
Fard to mprort Shchane s admnace Treeetoe by oy Searry b Sews deanng covh o properbn o snabie
- BCF 9 - Homriary cre and NS Comeuelly sreediens S aces sropertan ard gronds sugpart & home. Lk o 'W- BOF 2 - Housng 20
proparten
Lo O
" o o : Lrpreez S I - P P - LE5E
W-IECF 10 Suppor? o Cameny ey Sarned oS Sren WrecE L omert asd Sreed sayreets b ceren and voung ceren. carer. Sipal ofe 29¢
[ e ecvooecy el o roaSey ety heeed e oo e howofiel beeed stvoracy. 8 conbributon bo menben
(tfw Hiocx WL A crowscs S WO roeeecr o W07 A
W-IECE 12 Doy - Frspatord Therapal wsooring Towery e fendlirg cwewwn n Bw commurrty 290
i W-IECF 15 Erxt of Lfw Funchng for Foaoce oot for e Aoni WereTniey Sorts e Bty SO0 acheeen 252
i Fol ey mpisrrtaier of & cew el cetway & (et 200U B ot apmeehs pabenthy o mode et B0 hagh mie of
W-IECT 18 *ah prewenbon Hafby wet a cortr st o Sl cer-roorSret e e st actonasl Susnsmerdts Selwered v St of Howp tal provider Erd
=
| WO e W B ol ety b St Doty Outrmach Offer, shich drectty apoorks Ind redosh
'W-IBCF 16 Adufs wndh Aubem o —— - 295
e o
R T——— Lrabies WL 1o onaes ey S or lencees reeceehsl oeew grotoroh (et tavs regert 1o prope iy wealth | and charge
W 17 ra Sunad o coermurnly caw charpey Sroioesn At S n coedie propeecty et Tha thange & prowen ED aniouragy 250
W Py mcrie Law oo e S crewerd o mcooy S oo of cane Sresicioem
Lo buior o CorTTSESCETY TOLrTE A Sl Conds reguresE i ] ] and
ARCE 18] et ComeasnE | vt fochest e S BCF BT e
N Sy oyt gt wmeeord w L and Sowosine: wEnn B, 180
oo o B o, B Suctged Srwsasrwn Casar by retrnary fes nosaman wrBen B sruderrial and nureny cane mart el
Arucierial and Turery -
W-IECT 19 Thw Eusciget for 20566 nciurten o R mcewn Cormpar By B preseos yeas - b0 fectos m o conbriboton Sowerds 1 yean of 3, 200
o rifabor rosore. Boie crgmey sy sasen o Proesien ity metoung WD e et and nequning Top-Upe
= Forirbubon iowerds e Sl s caced Sy reoraary e rorsaen withn home et susparted g meiudng
] [ra— ey mwtEs T Sacget for 20004 rcden o £ 100 rrreess commared fo e pamaoun, v - 1o fechee n s oontrigation
Mowars 1 ywar of rfebor crmsoren s S ooy, e o dabiney Be S0 care oowviter marts o oaeport wal and Sy
Sty
o Lxra Larw Housmy Fee Labas
"W-IBCF 11 -y S0 Mags N Suppeort Neech - Leorsl Cardees, Dueweos® Larsen, Farrmeen, Dourt, Wet Sl (oot Achar Darden,  Trihe 530
w Mg Lodee, Chomwrymry Court, SErgior Locks, Bram Dot ans Levencder Wsadiown
ek I ———— P—— a Fr— P . M -
& - " o o - - P " i 910
‘ Prorader Lasming and o
; W-IECF 12 ' turcts Se Laarmimy s Dwwsicew e Parbwrsns o orowece 347
]
I PIT wupoort o cosield crowders
W-IECF 15 . ‘::‘;:Ith ity s arew A e e St ey oroveee . sl S wusoort sveikatie S0 ther and 185
I e L4 MO e orar e o oyl moerTy ¢ B Dusify Sacraer Team
]
l Fared it B i T LR iz Seves wlasing ans e Frovoer Markst
—— . s Wk et imd ncude funds 1o be
aad N iz mew ooE SvsserTL.

Page 47




Page 36 of 36
Draft V0.4

Protecting older peaple |Direct funding contributing towands homecare and community care budget pressures as 3 result of demand growth. The 2735
eommunity care budgets |budget for 2003724 remaires the same as 200920,
Services to suppart | Darect funding sustaining Dementia Day Ops, Dementia Mawigators and Dementia Carers Support services. This is acknowledged
dementia in the to be a high risk area for the system with negative impact on non-elective admissions, carer breakdown and increased 501
community permanent admissions to res/rursing care.
Direct funding contributing towands care management capacity budget pressures as a result of demand growth. This is a
WhIBCE 27 Care Management limitaing factor in the abdity to delwer service [e.5. reviews) and meet need |delver assessments). The budget for 2023/24 is the £39
Capacity same s 2019720 which onginally equated to 15 x FTE Sodal Warkers working in the community tzam to maintain existing
capacity.
Reductions in housing related support budgets hase resulted in the identification of increzsed adult social care needs which
Cast transfers from  |hawve to continue to be met, and therefore increasing demand cn community social cre. This scheme i direct funding 478
contributing towards community care budget pressures as a result of demand growth. The budget for 202324 is the same 25
01920

This scheme funds the Betber Together programme which provides project managesment, analytical, insight and programme

Suppart support to the Caventry and Warwickshire System Operational Discharge Delivery Group improvement activity and Better Care 250
Fund programme.
Total| 15,386
Total to be funded from IBCF allocation 15,011
IBCF Budget| 15,132
Variance {under/over draft IBCF budget) =121
Total to be funded from Development Fund 375

Page 48



Page 1 of 26

BCF Planning Template 2023-25

1. Guidance

Note on entering information into this template

Throughout the template, cells which are open for input have a yellow background and those that are pre-populated have a blue background, as below:
Data needs inputting in the cell

Pre-populated cells

2. Cover

1. The cover sheet provides essential information on the area for which the template is being completed, contacts and sign off.

2. Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed; when all the questions in each section of the template have been
completed the cell will turn green. Only when all cells are green should the template be sent to the Better Care Fund Team:
england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net (please also copy in your Better Care Manager).

3. The checklist helps identify the sheets that have not been completed. All fields that appear highlighted in red with the word 'no’, should be completed
before sending to the Better Care Fund Team.

4. The checker column, which can be found on each individual sheet, updates automatically as questions are completed. It will appear 'Red' and contain the
word 'No' if the information has not been completed. Once completed the checker column will change to 'Green' and contain the word 'Yes'.

5. The 'sheet completed' cell will update when all ‘checker' values for the sheet are green containing the word 'Yes'.
6. Once the checker column contains all cells marked 'Yes' the 'Incomplete Template' cell (below the title) will change to 'Template Complete'.
7. Please ensure that all boxes on the checklist are green before submission.

8. Sign off - HWB sign off will be subject to your own governance arrangements which may include delegated authority.

4. Capacity and Demand

Please see the guidance on the Capacity&Demand tab for further information on how to complete this section.

5. Income

1. This sheet should be used to specify all funding contributions to the Health and Wellbeing Board's (HWB) Better Care Fund (BCF) plan and pooled budget
for 2023-25. It will be pre-populated with the minimum NHS contributions to the BCF, iBCF grant allocations and allocations of ASC Discharge Fund grant to
local authorities for 2023-24. The iBCF grant in 2024-25 is expected to remain at the same value nationally as in 2023-24, but local allocations are not
published. You should enter the 2023-24 value into the income field for the iBCF in 2024-25 and agree provisional plans for its use as part of your BCF plan

2. The grant determination for the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) for 2023-24 will be issued in May. Allocations have not been published so are not pre
populated in the template. You will need to manually enter these allocations. Further advice will be provided by the BCF Team.

3. Areas will need to input the amount of ASC Discharge Fund paid to ICBs that will be allocated to the HWB's BCF pool. These will be checked against a
separate ICB return to ensure they reconcile. Allocations of the ASC discharge funding grant to local authority will need to be inputted manually for Year 2 as
allocations at local level are not confirmed. Areas should input an expected allocation based on the published national allocation (E500m in 2024-25,
increased from £300m in 2023-24) and agree provisional plans for 2024-25 based on this.

4. Please select whether any additional contributions to the BCF pool are being made from local authorities or ICBs and enter the amounts in the fields
highlighted in ‘yellow’. These will appear as funding sources in sheet 5a when you planning expenditure.

5. Please use the comment boxes alongside to add any specific detail around this additional contribution.
6. If you are pooling any funding carried over from 2022-23 (i.e. underspends from BCF mandatory contributions) you should show these as additional

contributions, but on a separate line to any other additional contributions. Use the comments field to identify that these are underspends that have been
rolled forward. All allocations are rounded to the nearest pound.

7. Allocations of the NHS minimum contribution are shown as allocations from each ICB to the HWB area in question. Where more than one ICB contributes
to the area's BCF plan, the minimum contribution from each ICB to the local BCF plan will be displayed.

8. For any questions regarding the BCF funding allocations, please contact england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net (please also copy in your Better Care
Manager).

Page 49


mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net

Page 2 of 26

6. Expenditure

This sheet should be used to set out the detail of schemes that are funded via the BCF plan for the HWB, including amounts, units, type of activity and
funding source. This information is then aggregated and used to analyse the BCF plans nationally and sets the basis for future reporting.

The information in the sheet is also used to calculate total contributions under National Condition 4 and is used by assurers to ensure that these are met.

The table is set out to capture a range of information about how schemes are being funded and the types of services they are providing. There may be
scenarios when several lines need to be completed in order to fully describe a single scheme or where a scheme is funded by multiple funding streams (eg:
iBCF and NHS minimum). In this case please use a consistent scheme ID for each line to ensure integrity of aggregating and analysing schemes.

On this sheet please enter the following information:

1. Scheme ID:

- This field only permits numbers. Please enter a number to represent the Scheme ID for the scheme being entered. Please enter the same Scheme ID in this
column for any schemes that are described across multiple rows.

2. Scheme Name:

- This is a free text field to aid identification during the planning process. Please use the scheme name consistently if the scheme is described across multiple
lines in line with the scheme ID described above.

3. Brief Description of Scheme

- This is a free text field to include a brief headline description of the scheme being planned. The information in this field assists assurers in understanding
how funding in the local BCF plan is supporting the objectives of the fund nationally and aims in your local plan.

4. Scheme Type and Sub Type:

- Please select the Scheme Type from the drop-down list that best represents the type of scheme being planned. A description of each scheme is available in
tab 6b.

- Where the Scheme Types has further options to choose from, the Sub Type column alongside will be editable and turn "yellow". Please select the Sub Type
from the drop down list that best describes the scheme being planned.

- Please note that the drop down list has a scroll bar to scroll through the list and all the options may not appear in one view.

- If the scheme is not adequately described by the available options, please choose ‘Other’ and add a free field description for the scheme type in the column
alongside. Please try to use pre-populated scheme types and sub types where possible, as this data is important in assurance and to our understanding of
how BCF funding is being used nationally.

- The template includes a field that will inform you when more than 5% of mandatory spend is classed as other.

5. Expected outputs

- You will need to set out the expected number of outputs you expect to be delivered in 2023-24 and 2024-25 for some scheme types. If you select a relevant
scheme type, the 'expected outputs' column will unlock and the unit column will pre populate with the unit for that scheme type.

- You will not be able to change the unit and should use an estimate where necessary. The outputs field will only accept numeric characters.

- A table showing the scheme types that require an estimate of outputs and the units that will prepopulate can be found in tab 6b. Expenditure Guidance.

You do not need to fill out these columns for certain scheme types. Where this is the case, the cells will turn blue and the column will remain empty.

6. Area of Spend:

- Please select the area of spend from the drop-down list by considering the area of the health and social care system which is most supported by investing in
the scheme.

- Please note that where ‘Social Care’ is selected and the source of funding is “NHS minimum” then the planned spend would count towards eligible
expenditure on social care under National Condition 4.

- If the scheme is not adequately described by the available options, please choose ‘Other’ and add a free field description for the scheme type in the column
alongside.

- We encourage areas to try to use the standard scheme types where possible.

7. Commissioner:

- Identify the commissioning body for the scheme based on who is responsible for commissioning the scheme from the provider.

- Please note this field is utilised in the calculations for meeting National Condition 3. Any spend that is from the funding source 'NHS minimum contribution',
is commissioned by the ICB, and where the spend area is not 'acute care', will contribute to the total spend on NHS commissioned out of hospital services
under National Condition 4. This will include expenditure that is ICB commissioned and classed as 'social care'.

- If the scheme is commissioned jointly, please select ‘Joint’. Please estimate the proportion of the scheme being commissioned by the local authority and
NHS and enter the respective percentages on the two columns.

8. Provider:

- Please select the type of provider commissioned to provide the scheme from the drop-down list.

- If the scheme is being provided by multiple providers, please split the scheme across multiple lines.

9. Source of Funding:

- Based on the funding sources for the BCF pool for the HWB, please select the source of funding for the scheme from the drop down list. This includes
additional, voluntarily pooled contributions from either the ICB or Local authority

- If a scheme is funded from multiple sources of funding, please split the scheme across multiple lines, reflecting the financial contribution from each.

10. Expenditure (£) 2023-24 & 2024-25:

- Please enter the planned spend for the scheme (or the scheme line, if the scheme is expressed across multiple lines)

11. New/Existing Scheme

- Please indicate whether the planned scheme is a new scheme for this year or an existing scheme being carried forward.

12. Percentage of overall spend. This new requirement asks for the percentage of overall spend in the HWB on that scheme type. This is a new collection for
2023-25. This information will help better identify and articulate the contribution of BCF funding to delivering capacity.

You should estimate the overall spend on the activity type in question across the system (both local authority and ICB commissioned where both
organisations commission this type of service). Where the total spend in the system is not clear, you should include an estimate. The figure will not be
subject to assurance. This estimate should be based on expected spend in that category in the BCF over both years of the programme divided by both years
total spend in that same category in the system.

Page 50



Page 3 of 26

This sheet should be used to set out the HWB's ambitions (i.e. numerical trajectories) and performance plans for each of the BCF metrics in 2023-25. The BCF
policy requires trajectories and plans agreed for the fund's metrics. Systems should review current performance and set realistic, but stretching ambitions
for 2023-24.

A data pack showing more up to date breakdowns of data for the discharge to usual place of residence and unplanned admissions for ambulatory care
sensitive conditions is available on the Better Care Exchange.

For each metric, areas should include narratives that describe:

- a rationale for the ambition set, based on current and recent data, planned activity and expected demand

- the local plan for improving performance on this metric and meeting the ambitions through the year. This should include changes to commissioned
services, joint working and how BCF funded services will support this.

1. Unplanned admissions for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions:

- This section requires the area to input indirectly standardised rate (ISR) of admissions per 100,000 population by quarter in 2023-24. This will be based on
NHS Outcomes Framework indicator 2.3i but using latest available population data.

- The indicator value is calculated using the indirectly standardised rate of admission per 100,000, standardised by age and gender to the national figures in
reference year 2011. This is calculated by working out the SAR (observed admission/expected admissions*100) and multiplying by the crude rate for the
reference year. The expected value is the observed rate during the reference year multiplied by the population of the breakdown of the year in question.

- The population data used is the latest available at the time of writing (2021)

- Actual performance for each quarter of 2022-23 are pre-populated in the template and will display once the local authority has been selected in the drop
down box on the Cover sheet.

- Please use the ISR Tool published on the BCX where you can input your assumptions and simply copy the output ISR:
https://future.nhs.uk/bettercareexchange/view?objectld=143133861

- Technical definitions for the guidance can be found here:
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/march-2022/domain-2---enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-
with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions

2. Falls
- This is a new metric for the BCF and areas should agree ambitions for reducing the rate of emergency admissions to hospital for people aged 65 or over
following a fall.
- This is a measure in the Public Health Outcome Framework.
- This requires input for an Indicator value which is directly age standardised rate per 100,000. Emergency hospital admissions due to falls in people aged 65
and over.
- Please enter provisional outturns for 2022-23 based on local data for admissions for falls from April 2022-March 2023.
- For 2023-24 input planned levels of emergency admissions
- In both cases this should consist of:
- emergency admissions due to falls for the year for people aged 65 and over (count)
- estimated local population (people aged 65 and over)
- rate per 100,000 (indicator value) (Count/population x 100,000)

- The latest available data is for 2021-22 which will be refreshed around Q4.

Further information about this measure and methodolgy used can be found here:
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/6/gid/1000042/pat/6/par/E12000004/ati/102/are/E06000015/iid/22401/age/27/sex/4

3. Discharge to normal place of residence.

- Areas should agree ambitions for the percentage of people who are discharged to their normal place of residence following an inpatient stay. In 2022-23,
areas were asked to set a planned percentage of discharge to the person's usual place of residence for the year as a whole. In 2023-24 areas should agree a
rate for each quarter.

- The ambition should be set for the health and wellbeing board area. The data for this metric is obtained from the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) database
and is collected at hospital trust. A breakdown of data from SUS by local authority of residence has been made available on the Better Care Exchange to
assist areas to set ambitions.

- Ambitions should be set as the percentage of all discharges where the destination of discharge is the person's usual place of residence.

- Actual performance for each quarter of 2022-23 are pre-populated in the template and will display once the local authority has been selected in the drop
down box on the Cover sheet.

4. Residential Admissions:

- This section requires inputting the expected numerator of the measure only.

- Please enter the planned number of council-supported older people (aged 65 and over) whose long-term support needs will be met by a change of setting
to residential and nursing care during the year (excluding transfers between residential and nursing care)

- Column H asks for an estimated actual performance against this metric in 2022-23. Data for this metric is not published until October, but local authorities
will collect and submit this data as part of their salt returns in July. You should use this data to populate the estimated data in column H.

- The prepopulated denominator of the measure is the size of the older people population in the area (aged 65 and over) taken from Office for National
Statistics (ONS) subnational population projections.

- The annual rate is then calculated and populated based on the entered information.

Page 51


https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf

Page 4 of 26

5. Reablement:

- This section requires inputting the information for the numerator and denominator of the measure.

- Please enter the planned denominator figure, which is the planned number of older people discharged from hospital to their own home for rehabilitation
(or from hospital to a residential or nursing care home or extra care housing for rehabilitation, with a clear intention that they will move on/back to their
own home).

- Please then enter the planned numerator figure, which is the expected number of older people discharged from hospital to their own home for
rehabilitation (from within the denominator) that will still be at home 91 days after discharge.

- Column H asks for an estimated actual performance against this metric in 2022-23. Data for this metric is not published until October, but local authorities
will collect and submit this data as part of their salt returns in July. You should use this data to populate the estimated data in column H.

- The annual proportion (%) Reablement measure will then be calculated and populated based on this information.

This sheet requires the Health and Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the National Conditions and other Planning Requirements detailed in the BCF Policy
Framework and the BCF Planning Requirements document are met. Please refer to the BCF Policy Framework and BCF Planning Requirements documents for
2023-2025 for further details.

The sheet also sets out where evidence for each Key Line of Enquiry (KLOE) will be taken from.

The KLOEs underpinning the Planning Requirements are also provided for reference as they will be utilised to assure plans by the regional assurance panel.

1. For each Planning Requirement please select ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ to confirm whether the requirement is met for the BCF Plan.
2. Where the confirmation selected is ‘No’, please use the comments boxes to include the actions in place towards meeting the requirement and the target
timeframes.

Page 52



HM Government  England

2. Cover

|Version 1.13 |

Please Note:

- The BCF planning template is categorised as 'Management Information' and data from them will published in an aggregated form on the NHSE website and gov.uk. This will include any narrative section. Also a reminder that as is usually the case with public body information,
all BCF information collected here is subject to Freedom of Information requests.

- At alocal level it is for the HWB to decide what information it needs to publish as part of wider local government reporting and transparency requirements. Until BCF information is published, recipients of BCF reporting information (including recipients who access any

information placed on the BCE) are prohibited from making this information available on any public domain or providing this information for the purposes of journalism or research without prior consent from the HWB (where it concerns a single HWB) or the BCF national
partners for the aggregated information.

- All information will be supplied to BCF partners to inform policy development.
- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required if this is breached.

Complete:
Health and Wellbeing Board: Warwickshire Yes

Completed by: Becky Hale Yes
E-mail: Beckyhale @warwickshire.gov.uk Yes
Crintact number: 01926 742003 Yes
Has this report been signed off by (or on behalf of) the HWB at the time of
stbmission? No

Yes
If . please indicate when the HWB is expected to sign off the plan: Wed 19/07/2023 << Please enter using the format, DD/MM/YYYY Y

S

Professional

Title (e.g. Dr,
Clir, Prof) First-name: Surname:
" ) Health and Wellbeing Board Chair Councillor Margaret Bell margaretbell@warwickshir
Area Assurance Contact Details:
e.gov.uk

Integrated Care Board Chief Executive or person to whom they Chief Officer | Phil Johns philip.johns@nhs.net

have delegated sign-off

Additional ICB(s) contacts if relevant Chief Finance |Madi Parmar madi.parmar@nhs.net
Officer

Local Authority Chief Executive Chief Monica Fogarty monicafogarty@warwicksh
Executive ire.gov.uk

Local Authority Director of Adult Social Services (or equivalent) Strategic Nigel Minns nigelminns@warwickshire.
Director gov.uk

Better Care Fund Lead Official Chief Becky Hale beckyhale@warwickshire.g
Commissionin ov.uk

9z Jo g abed



LA Section 151 Officer Strategic Rob Powell robpowell@warwickshire.g
Director ov.uk
Please add further area contacts that |Leader of the Council Councillor Isobel Seccombe OBE isobelseccombe@warwicks

you would wish to be included in

hire.gov.uk

official correspondence e.g. housing

or trusts that have been part of the
process -->

Question Completion - When all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green, please send the template to
the Better Care Fund Team england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net saving the file as 'Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB"'. Please also
copy in your Better Care Manager.

Please see the Checklist below for further details on incomplete fields

Complete:

2. Cover

4. Capacity&Demand
5. Income
63Tgxpenditure
7Qetrics

@anning Requirements
D

[ O1 << Link to the Guidance sheet
IS

AN Link back to top

9z J0 9 abed


mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net

Page 7 of 26

Better Care Fund 2023-25 Template

3. Summary

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Warwickshire

Income & Expenditure

Income >>

Funding Sources Income Yr 1 Income Yr 2 Expenditure Yr 1 Expenditure Yr 2 Difference
DFG £5,124,786 £5,124,786 £5,124,786 £5,124,786 £0
Minimum NHS Contribution £45,204,245 £47,762,805 £45,204,245 £47,762,805 £0
iBCF £15,133,281 £15,133,281 £15,133,281 £15,133,281 £0
Additional LA Contribution £175,938,908 £180,988,215 £175,938,908 £180,988,215 £0
Additional ICB Contribution £110,543,165 £116,799,909 £110,543,165 £116,799,909 £0
Local Authority Discharge Funding £2,121,662 £3,536,103 £2,121,662 £3,536,103 £0
ICB Discharge Funding £3,518,000 £4,666,667 £3,518,000 £4,666,667 £0

Total £357,584,048 £374,011,766 £357,584,047 £374,011,766 £1

Expenditure >>

NHS Commissioned Out of Hospital spend from the minimum ICB allocation

Minimum required spend £12,897,077 £13,627,052

£29,065,748 £30,710,869

Planned spend

Adult Social Care services spend from the minimum ICB allocations

Minimum required spend £16,138,497 £17,051,936

£16,138,497 £17,051,936

Planned spend

Metrics >>

Avoidable admissions

2023-24 Q1 2023-24 Q2 2023-24 Q3
Plan

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions
(Rate per 100,000 population)

2022-23 estimated 2023-24 Plan

Indicator value

Emergency hospital admissions due to falls in people
aged 65 and over directly age standardised rate per Count
100,000.

Population

125709 127644

Discharge to normal place of residence

2023-24 Q1 2023-24 Q2 2023-24 Q3
Plan ET] Plan
Percentage of people, resident in the HWB, who are discharged from acute
hospital to their normal place of residence

(SUS data - available on the Better Care Exchange)

Residential Admissions

Page 55



Page 8 of 26

2021-22 Actual 2023-24 Plan

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65 and
over) met by admission to residential and nursing care  Annual Rate
homes, per 100,000 population

2023-24 Plan

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still
at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into Annual (%)
reablement / rehabilitation services

Planning Requirements >>

Theme Response

NC1: Jointly agreed plan

NC2: Social Care Maintenance

NC3: NHS commissioned Out of Hospital Services

NC4: Implementing the BCF policy objectives

Agreed expenditure plan for all elements of the BCF

Metrics

Page 56



Better Care Fund 2023-24 Capacity & Demand Template

3. Capacity & Demand

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Warwickshire

Guidance on completing this sheet is set out below, but should be read in conjunction with the guidance in the BCF planning requirements

3.1 Demand - Hospital Discharge

This section requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to record expected monthly demand for supported discharge by discharge pathway.

discharges from each trust by Pathway for each month. The template aligns tothe pathways in the hospital discharge policy, but separates Pathway 1 (discharge home with new or additional support) into separate
estimates of reablement, rehabiitation and short term domiciliary care)

If there are any trusts taking a small percentage of local residents who are admitted to hospital, then please consider aggregating these trusts under a single line using the 'Other' Trust option.
The table at the top of the screen will display total expected demand for the area by discharge pathway and by month.
Estimated levels of discharge should draw on:

- Estimated numbers of discharges by pathway at ICB level from NHS plans for 2023-24
- Data from the NHSE Discharge Pathways Model.

- Management information from discharge hubs and local authority data on requests for care and assessment.

Yetcjhould enter the estimated number of discharges requiring each type of support for each month.
Q

3.2 Demand - Community

T

section collects expected demand for intermediate care services from community sources, such as multi-disciplinary teams, single points of access or 111. The template does not collect referrals by source, and you
sf‘ﬂld input an overall estimate each month for the number of people requiring intermediate care or short term care (non-discharge) each month, split by different type of intermediate care.

Further detail on definitions is provided in Appendix 2 of the Planning Requirements.
The units can simply be the number of referrals.

3.3 Capacity - Hospital Discharge

This section collects expected capacity for services to support people being discharged from acute hospital. You should input the expected available capacity to support discharge across these different service types:
- Social support (including VCS)

- Reablement at Home

- Rehabilitation at home

- Short term domiciliary care

- Reablement in a bedded setting

- Rehabilitation in a bedded setting

- Short-term residential/nursing care for someone likely to require a longer-term care home placement

Please consider the below factors in determining the capacity calculation. Typically this will be (Caseload*days in month*max occupancy percentage)/average duration of service or length of stay
Caseload (No. of people who can be looked after at any given time)

Average stay (days) - The average length of time that a service is provided to people, or average length of stay in a bedded facility
Please consider using median or mode for LoS where there are significant outliers

9z Jo 6 abed



Peak Occupancy (percentage) - What was the highest levels of occupany expressed as a percentage? This will usually apply to residential units, rather than care in a person's own home. For services in a person's own
home then this would need to take into account how many people, on average, that can be provided with services.

At the end of each row, you should enter estimates for the percentage of the service in question that is commissioned by the local authority, the ICB and jointly.

3.4 Capacity - Community

This section collects expected capacity for community services. You should input the expected available capacity across the different service types.

You should include expected available capacity across these service types for eligible referrals from community sources. This should cover all service intermediate care services to support recovery, including Urgent
Community Response and VCS support. The template is split into 7 types of service:

- Social support (including VCS)

- Urgent Community Response

- Reablement at home

- Rehabilitation at home

- Other short-term social care

- Reablement in a bedded setting

- Rehabilitation in a bedded setting

Please consider the below factors in determining the capacity calculation. Typically this will be (Caseload*days in month*max occupancy percentage)/average duration of service or length of stay
Caseload (No. of people who can be looked after at any given time)

AvBJage stay (days) - The average length of time that a service is provided to people, or average length of stay in a bedded facility

F%se consider using median or mode for LoS where there are significant outliers

Pepk Occupancy (percentage) - What was the highest levels of occupany expressed as a percentage? This will usually apply to residential units, rather than care in a person's own home. For services in a person's own
h@n'e then this would need to

o

At the end of each row, you should enter estimates for the percentage of the service in question that is commissioned by the local authority, the ICB and jointly.

Virtual wards should not form part of capacity and demand plans because they represent acute, rather than intermediate, care. Where recording a virtual ward as a referral source, pease select the relevant trust from the
list. Further guidance on all sections is available in Appendix 2 of the BCF Planning Requirements.

Compl

Any assumptions made. Expected packages for community services based off

3.1

Please include your considerations and assumptions for Length of Stay and  [oJgcVileJNERe¢=Tale e EYI\A [0 oaY LTe o L iaT el [T M YA ENAR T4}
average numbers of hours committed to a homecare package that have been [lelsl{iMeETEldia AN 1o ISR T NC I o Lo 1aVRe [ A\Te 3.2
used to derive the number of expected packages. from demand, which is covered in discharge section. 3.3

3.1 Demand-Hospital (NHS data limitations)

No PO included as available NHS data doesn’t identify
voluntary sector. 3.4
All P1 included in reablement.

P2 care home and comm. Reablement in P2

9z Jo QT abed



11Click on the filter box helow to select Trust first!
Trust Referral Source
need)
GEORGE ELIOT HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

(Select as many as you

SOUTH WARWICKSHIRE UNIVERSITY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST

GEORGE ELIOT HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

SOUTH WARWICKSHIRE UNIVERSITY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST

GEORGE ELIOT HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

SOUTH WARWICKSHIRE UNIVERSITY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST

GEORGE ELIOT HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

SOUTH WARWICKSHIRE UNIVERSITY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST

GEORGE ELIOT HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

SOUTH WARWICKSHIRE UNIVERSITY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST

GEORGE ELIOT HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

SOUTH WARWICKSHIRE UNIVERSITY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST

GEORGE ELIOT HOSPITAL NHS TRUST

SOUTH WARWICKSHIRE UNIVERSITY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST

Totals

‘3.2 Demand - Community

6G obec

\3.3 Capacity - Hospital Discharge

Demand - Hospital Discharge

Pathway

Social support (including VCS) (pathway 0)

Reablement at home (pathway 1)

Rehabilitation at home (pathway 1)

Short term domiciliary care (pathway 1)

Reablement in a bedded setting (pathway 2)

Rehabilitation in a bedded setting (pathway 2)

Short-term residential/nursing care for someone
likely to require a longer-term care home
placement (pathway 3)

Total:

Demand - Intermediate Care
Service Type

Social support (including VCS)
Urgent Community Response
Reablement at home
Rehabilitation at home
Reablement in a bedded setting
Rehabilitation in a bedded setting
Other short-term social care

Capacity - Hospital Discharge

Service Area

‘Social support (including VCS)
‘Reablement at Home
‘Rehabilitation at home

‘Short term domiciliary care
‘Reablemen a bedded setting
\Rehabilitation in a bedded setting

Short-term residential/nursing care for someone likely to require a longer-

term care home placement

Capacity - Community

Service Area
Social support (including VCS)

Metric

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
111.635235| 119.57526( 113.629738| 111.29332| 111.103367| 110.020636| 114.256583| 114.598497| 113.610743| 111.749206| 107.323307| 117.16286
347.079366| 371.76529| 353.280376| 346.016336| 345.425764| 342.059501| 355.229264| 356.292295| 353.221319| 347.43371| 333.673374| 364.265021
126.6966| 135.707861| 128.960194| 126.308555| 126.092975| 124.864167| 129.671609| 130.059654| 128.938636| 126.825948| 121.802925| 132.96999

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
14.5295316| 15.5629405 14.78912| 14.4850307| 14.460308| 14.3193886| 14.8707049| 14.9152057| 14.7866477| 14.5443652| 13.9683263| 15.2489622
14.2150867| 15.2261308| 14.4690571| 14.1715489) 14.1473613| 14.0094916| 14.5488764| 14.5924142| 14.4666384| 14.2295993| 13.6660269| 14.9189476
49.8920213| 53.4405775| 50.783405| 49.7392126| 49.6543189| 49.1704249| 51.0635542| 51.2163628| 50.7749156| 49.9429575| 47.9649345| 52.3624276
1.29151392 1.38337249| 1.31458844| 1.28755829( 1.28536071| 1.27283455| 1.32184043| 1.32579607| 1.31436868| 1.29283246 1.241629| 1.35546331
0.20404431| 0.2185569| 0.20768982| 0.20341936| 0.20307217| 0.20109318| 0.20883555| 0.20946049| 0.2076551| 0.20425262| 0.19616307| 0.21414757
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
665.543398 712.879989 677.434169 663.504981 662.372526 655.917537 681.171268 683.209686 677.320923 666.222871 639.836685 698.497819

May-23

Jun-23

Jul-23

Aug-23

Sep-23

Dec-23

Jan-24

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1095 1131 1095 1129 1129 1092 1137 1101 1137 1163 1050 1163
125.547235| 129.732143| 125.547235| 129.732143| 129.732143| 125.547235( 129.732143| 125.547235| 129.732143| 129.732143| 117.177419| 129.732143
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

May-23

Jun-23

Jul-23

Aug-23

Sep-23

Oct-23

Dec-23

Jan-24

9z jo TT abed

Commissioning responsibility (% of each service type

commissioned by LA/ICB or jointly

ICB LA

Joint

Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 146 194 163 145 167 160 171 172 158 171 169 153 100%

Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 128 139 130 94 138 109 85 117 132 122 104 104 100%

Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 43 134 129 134 134 129 134 129 134 134 125 134 100%

Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 414 354 337 356 311 339 380 355 330 330 334 376 100%
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 27.147635| 28.0525561| 27.147635| 28.0525561| 28.0525561| 27.147635| 28.0525561| 27.147635( 36.6703168| 47.5622086| 42.9594143| 47.5622086 20% 80%

Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 51.1745597| 55.840283| 52.5738843| 50.0297543| 49.8964853| 50.0417732| 52.1087508| 53.2535562| 43.0378756| 30.8399474| 32.337574| 34.6381141 100%
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 1.49555823| 1.60192939| 1.52227826| 1.49097765( 1.48843289| 1.47392773

1.53067598| 1.53525656| 1.52202378| 1.49708509( 1.43779207| 1.56961088 100%

3.4 Capacity - Community

Metric
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients.

Apr-23

May-23

Jun-23

Jul-23

Aug-23

Sep-23

Oct-23

Nov-23

Dec-23

Jan-24

Feb-24

Mar-24

Commissioning responsibility (% of each service type

commissioned by LA/ICB or jointly
IcB LA

Joint




Urgent Community Response Monthly capacity. Number of new clients.

ed

‘Reablement at Home

\Rehabilitation at home

‘Reablement a bedded setting

\Rehabilitation in a bedded setting

‘Other short-term social care

1095 1131 1095 1129 1129 1092 1137 1101 1137 1163 1050 1163 100%
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 125.547235| 129.732143| 125.547235| 129.732143( 129.732143| 125.547235| 129.732143| 125.547235| 129.732143| 129.732143( 117.177419| 129.732143 100%
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Monthly capacity. Number of new clients. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-
Q
Q
@D
o
o

9¢1]



T9 abed

Better Care Fund 2023-25 Template

4. Income
Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Local Authority Contribution

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)

|Warwickshire

Gross Contribution
Yrl

Gross Contribution
Yr 2

Warwickshire £5,124,786 £5,124,786
DFG breakdown for two-tier areas only (where applicable)

North Warwickshire £794,560 £794,560
Nuneaton and Bedworth £1,652,119 £1,652,119
Rugby £717,236 £717,236
Stratford-on-Avon £961,444 £961,444
Warwick £999,427 £999,427
Total Minimum LA Contribution (exc iBCF) £5,124,786 £5,124,786

Local Authority Discharge Funding
Warwickshire

Contribution Yr 1
£2,121,662

Contribution Yr 2
£3,536,103

ICB Discharge Funding
NHS Coventry and Warwickshire ICB

Contribution Yr 1
£3,518,000

Contribution Yr 2
£4,666,667

Total ICB Discharge Fund Contribution

£3,518,000

£4,666,667

iBCF Contribution

Contribution Yr 1

Contribution Yr 2

Warwickshire £15,133,281 £15,133,281
Total iBCF Contribution £15,133,281 £15,133,281
Are any additional LA Contributions being made in 2023-257 If yes, Yes

please detail below

Local Authority Additional Contribution
Warwickshire

Contribution Yr 1
£175,938,908

Contribution Yr 2
£180,988,215

Comments - Please use this box to clarify any specific uses
or sources of funding
Aligned budget in the BCF plan relating to all ASC service

Total Additional Local Authority Contribution

£175,938,908

£180,988,215

Complete:

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

9z Jo £T abed



NHS Minimum Contribution

Contribution Yr 1

Contribution Yr 2

NHS Coventry and Warwickshire ICB £45,204,245 £47,762,805
Total NHS Minimum Contribution £45,204,245 £47,762,805
Are any additional ICB Contributions being made in 2023-257? If Yes

yes, please detail below

Additional ICB Contribution

NHS Coventry and Warwickshire ICB

Contribution Yr 1
£110,543,165

Contribution Yr 2
£116,799,909

Comments - Please use this box clarify any specific uses or
sources of funding
Aligned out of hospital budget in the BCF plan - NOTE THIS

Total Additional NHS Contribution £110,543,165 £116,799,909
Total NHS Contribution £155,747,410 £164,562,714

2023-24 2024-25
Total BCF Pooled Budget £357,584,048 £374,011,766

Funding Contributions Comments

Optional for any useful detail e.g. Carry over

29 abed

9z Jo {T abed



€9 abed

Fund 2023-25 Template

5. Expenditure

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

<< Link to summary sheet

Scheme Name

Running Balances
DFG
Minimum NHS Contributio
iBCF
Additional LA Contribution

|Warwickshire

n

Additional NHS Contribution
Local Authority Discharge Funding

ICB Discharge Funding
Total

Required Spend

NHS Commissioned Out of Hospital spend from the

minimum ICB allocation

ICB allocations

Brief Description of Scheme

Adult Social Care services spend from the minimum

Scheme Type

Income

2023-24

Expenditure

Balance

Income

Expenditure

£5,124,786 £5,124,786 £0 £5,124,786 £5,124,786 £0
£45,204,245 £45,204,245 £0 £47,762,805 £47,762,805 £0
£15,133,281 £15,133,281 £0 £15,133,281 £15,133,281 £0
£175,938,908 £175,938,908 £0 £180,988,215 £180,988,215 £0
£110,543,165 £110,543,165 £0 £116,799,909 £116,799,909 £0
£2,121,662 £2,121,662 £0 £3,536,103 £3,536,103 £0
£3,518,000 £3,518,000 £4,666,667 £4,666,667 £0
£357,584,048 £357,584,047 £1 £374,011,766 £374,011,766 £0

Minimum Required

£12,897,077

Spend

This is in relation to National Conditions 2 and 3 only. It does NOT make up the total Minimum ICB Contribution (on row 33 above).

2023-24

Planned Spend

£29,065,748

Under Spend

Minimum Required Spend

£0 £13,627,052

2024-25
Planned Spend

£30,710,869

Under Spend

£0

£16,138,497

£16,138,497

£0 £17,051,936

£17,051,936

£0

Sub Types

Please specify if
'Scheme Type' is

'Other'

Expected

outputs 2023-24

Expected
outputs 2024-25

Planned Expenditure

Area of Spend Please specify if
'Area of Spend' is
‘other'

Commissioner % NHS (if Joint

Commissioner)

% LA (if Joint
Commissioner)

Provider

Source of
Funding

1 Domicillary Care | Packages of care Home Care or Domiciliary care packages 381208 381208 Hours of care Social Care LA Private Sector Minimum
(base BCF) Domiciliary Care NHS
Contribution
2 Reablement (base |Reablement Home-based Reablement at home (to 1207 1275 Packages Social Care LA Local Authority  |Minimum
BCF) intermediate care support discharge) NHS
services Contribution
3 Integrated Community equipment for Assistive Technologies |Community based 4276 4518 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector Minimum
Community social care and Equipment equipment beneficiaries NHS
Equipment (ICE) Contribution
4 Moving on Beds | MOB's used primarily for Bed based Bed-based intermediate care 16 16 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector Minimum
(base BCF) social care and housing intermediate Care with rehabilitation (to Placements NHS
related step down Services ( 1t, |support discharge) Contribution
5 W-IBCF 1 Hospital |Supporting timely discharges |High Impact Change Home First/Discharge to Social Care LA Local Authority  |iBCF
Social Care Team |including to care homes Model for Managing  [Assess - process
Transfer of Care support/core costs
6 W-IBCF 2 Housing |Housing related support to High Impact Change Housing and related services Social Care LA Local Authority |iBCF
Hospital Liaison & |support early discharge Model for Managing
W-IBCF 9 planning and enable Transfer of Care
7 W-IBCF 3 Hospital |Access to social prescribing |Prevention / Early Social Prescribing Social Care LA Charity / iBCF
based Social on discharge to supportre-  [Intervention Voluntary Sector
Prescribing | 1 prevention
8 W-IBCF 4 - Trusted | Support for discharges into  [High Impact Change Trusted Assessment Social Care LA Local Authority |iBCF
Assessments care homes and exits from Model for Managing
intermediae care beds Transfer of Care
9 W-IBCF 5 - Brokerage of packages of High Impact Change Multi-Disciplinary/Multi- Social Care LA Local Authority  |iBCF
Domiciliary Care |care to enable discharge Model for Managing  |Agency Discharge Teams
Referral Team Transfer of Care supporting discharge
10 W-IBCF 6 - Hospital to home, including |Community Based Low level support for simple Social Care LA Local Authority |iBCF
Hospital to Home |falls prevention for the Schemes hospital discharges
Service vulnerable (Discharge to Assess
11 W-IBCF 7 - Moving |Enhanced and additional Bed based Bed-based intermediate care 9 9 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF
on Beds Moving on Bed capacity intermediate Care with rehabilitation (to Placements
Services (Reabl 1t, |support discharge)
12 W-IBCF 8 - Supports same day and Assistive Technologies [Community based 284 284 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF
Integrated urgent delivery cost pressures|and Equipment equipment beneficiaries
Community (health & social care) to
13 W-IBCF 10 - Carers|Planned and emergency short|Carers Services Carer advice and support 296 296 Beneficiaries Social Care LA Charity / iBCF
support breaks service, carers support related to Care Act duties Voluntary Sector
grant, direct payments for

9z Jo GT abed



9 abed

14 W-IBCF 11- Acute based service costs for [Care Act Independent Mental Health Social Care LA Charity / iBCF
Advocacy hospital based advocacy, Implementation Advocacy Voluntary Sector
contribution to maintain Related Duties
15 W-IBCF 12 Occupational Therapists in Community Based Multidisciplinary teams that Social Care LA Local Authority |iBCF
Occupational the community. Schemes are supporting
Therapy independence, such as
16 W-IBCF 13 End of |End of Life rapid response Personalised Care at Physical health/wellbeing Community LA Charity / iBCF
Life Rapid costs in the community Home Health Voluntary Sector
Response (hospice costs)
17 W-IBCF 14 - Falls |Contribution to falls care- Community Based Multidisciplinary teams that Community LA NHS Community |iBCF
Prevention coordination and Multi- Schemes are supporting Health Provider
Factorial 1t independence, such as
18 W-IBCF 16 - Adults|Community Outreach Offer [Community Based Multidisciplinary teams that Community LA Local Authority |iBCF
with Autism supporting Admission Schemes are supporting Health
Prevention by reducing independence, such as
19 W-IBCF 17 - Enables WCC to cease Carers Services Respite services 400 400 Beneficiaries Social Care LA Local Authority  |iBCF
Residential charging based on standard
Respite Care residential care protocols
20 W-IBCF 19 - Contributions to: Residential |Residential Placements [Care home 72 72 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF
Protecting older |and nursing care fee rates beds/Placements
people community|
21 W-IBCF 20 - Contributions to: Care at Home Care or Domiciliary care packages 107149 107149 Hours of care Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF
Protecting older |Home fee rates Domiciliary Care
people community!
22 W-IBCF 21 - Contributions to: Extra Care |Home Care or Domiciliary care packages 31085 32018 Hours of care Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF
Protecting NHS Housing Waking Nights Cover | Domiciliary Care
budgets through
23 W-IBCF 22 - Funds provider (health and  [Enablers for Workforce development Community LA Local Authority  |iBCF
Provider Learning |social care) support, training |Integration Health
and Development |and learning and specialist
24 W-IBCF 25, 27 and | Direct funding contributing  [Community Based Other Community Social Care LA Local Authority |iBCF
28 - Demand towards budget pressures Schemes social care
pressures relating |and capacity as a result of staffing
25 W-IBCF 26 - Dementia days ops, dementia [ Care Act Other Dementia Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF
Dementia Support | navigators and dementia Implementation services
in the community |carer support services Related Duties
26 W-IBCF 18 & 30 Resources to support joint Enablers for Programme management Social Care LA Local Authority |iBCF
Resources commissioning, the BCF Integration
Programme and system
27 W-IBCF 23 - OT and quality assurance Enablers for Workforce development Social Care LA Local Authority  |iBCF
Specialist support |support to ensure providers [Integration
for providers access all support available to
28 Carers Breaks Carers respite Carers Services Respite services 719 760 Beneficiaries Community NHS NHS Mental Minimum
(base BCF Health Health Provider |NHS
Contribution
29 Out of hospital -  [OOH community step up and |Personalised Care at  |Physical health/wellbeing Community NHS NHS Community |Minimum
WN, Rugby and step down support Home Health Provider NHS
SW (base BCF) Contribution
30 Discharge to P2 step down beds Bed based Bed-based intermediate care 439 464 Number of Community NHS Private Sector Minimum
Assess Beds - D2A intermediate Care with rehabilitation (to Placements Health NHS
(base BCF) Services (Reabl 1t, |support discharge) Contribution
31 Joint Funded Joint Funded Packages Home Care or Domiciliary care packages 9827 10129 Hours of care Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Minimum
Packages (base Domiciliary Care NHS
BCF) Contribution
32 Joint Funded Joint Funded Placements Residential Placements |Short-term Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Minimum
Packages - base residential/nursing care for NHS
BCF someone likely to require a Contribution
33 Joint Funded Joint Funded Placements Residential Placements |Short-term Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Minimum
Packages - base residential/nursing care for NHS
BCF someone likely to require a Contribution
34 Joint Funded Joint Funded Placements Residential Placements |Short-term Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Minimum
Packages - base residential/nursing care for NHS
BCF someone likely to require a Contribution
35 Out of Hospital OOH community step up and |Personalised Care at  |Physical health/wellbeing Community NHS NHS Community |Additional
(ICB aligned step down support Home Health Provider NHS
budgets) Contribution
36 Personal Health PHBs to provide eg. domiliary | Personalised Budgeting Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Additional
budgets (ICB care for patients with long and Commissioning NHS
aligned budgets) |term needs Contribution
37 Residential Care |Residential care long-term Residential Placements |Short-term Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Additional
placements (ICB  |placements residential/nursing care for NHS

aligned budgets)

someone likely to require a

Contribution

9z J0 9T abed



G9 abed

38 Nursing care Nursing care long-term Residential Placements |Short-term Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Additional
placements (ICB  |placements residential/nursing care for NHS
aligned budgets) someone likely to require a Contribution

39 Residential Supported Living placements |Residential Placements [Supported housing 1357 1463 Number of Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Additional
placements beds/Placements NHS
supported living Contribution

40 Domicilary Care Domiliary care for patients Home Care or Domiciliary care packages 97031 102522 Hours of care Continuing Care NHS Private Sector Additional
(ICB aligned with long term needs Domiciliary Care NHS
budgets) Contribution

41 Social Prescribing [Prevention activity to support | Prevention / Early Social Prescribing Community NHS Charity / Additional
(ICB aligned admission avoidance and Intervention Health Voluntary Sector [NHS
budgets) reduce/delay the need for Contribution

42 Domiciliary Care  |Supports hospital discharges |Home Care or Domiciliary care packages 813701 813701 Hours of care Social Care LA Private Sector Additional LA
(WCC aligned and community step up Domiciliary Care Contribution
budget)

43 Residential Care |Residential care long-term Residential Placements |Care home 1528 1528 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector Additional LA
(WCC aligned placements beds/Placements Contribution
budget)

a4 Nursing Care Nursing care long-term Residential Placements | Nursing home 475 475 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector Additional LA
(WCC aligned placements beds/Placements Contribution
budget)

45 Direct Payments | DPs for adults (e.g. instead of |Personalised Budgeting Social Care LA Private Sector Additional LA
(WCC aligned dom care PoC) and Commissioning Contribution
budget)

46 Carers (WCC Carers schemes supporting | Carers Services Other Carers advice 3317 3317 Beneficiaries Social Care LA Charity / Additional LA
aligned budget)  |admission prevention and and support Voluntary Sector |Contribution

long term PoC or Res

47 Contributions Workforce additional costs to |Housing Related Social Care LA Local Authority |Additional LA
towards HEART support the HEART service Schemes Contribution
staff and service, |deliver care act

48 Community Therapeutic Intermediate Home Care or Short term domiciliary care 2905 4842 Packages Social Care LA Private Sector Local
Recovery Service |care services Domiciliary Care (without reablement input) Authority
(ASC Discharge Discharge

49 Residential Care |Residential care short stay Residential Placements |Short term residential care 23 23 Number of Social Care LA Private Sector Local
(ASC Discharge placements (without rehabilitation or beds/Placements Authority
Funding) reablement input) Discharge

50 Community Therapeutic Intermediate Home Care or Short term domiciliary care 4877 8128 Packages Continuing Care NHS Private Sector ICB Discharge
Recovery Service |care services Domiciliary Care (without reablement input) Funding
(ICB Discharge

51 Residential Care |Residential care short stay Residential Placements |Short term residential care 387 498 Number of Continuing Care NHS Private Sector ICB Discharge
(ICB Discharge placements (without rehabilitation or beds/Placements Funding
funding) reablement input)

52 Supported Living |Supported Living placements [Home Care or Domiciliary care packages 2170309 2170309 Hours of care Social Care LA Private Sector Additional LA

Domiciliary Care Contribution

53 Disabled Facilities |Passported to the Tier 2 DFG Related Schemes |Adaptations, including 935 935 Number of Social Care LA Local Authority |DFG
Grant (Base BCF) |District and Borough Councils statutory DFG grants adaptations

funded/people

54 Integrated Health Equipment to support |Assistive Technologies |Community based 12418 13120 Number of Community NHS Private Sector Minimum
Community step dow discharges and step |and Equipment equipment beneficiaries Health NHS

Equipment (ICE)

up

Contribution

9z Jo /T abed



Further guidance for completing Expenditure sheet

Schemes tagged with the following will count towards the planned Adult Social Care services spend from the NHS min:
* Area of spend selected as ‘Social Care’
* Source of funding selected as ‘Minimum NHS Contribution’

Schemes tagged with the below will count towards the planned Out of Hospital spend from the NHS min:
* Area of spend selected with anything except ‘Acute’

* Commissioner selected as ‘ICB’ (if ‘Joint’ is selected, only the NHS % will contribute)

* Source of funding selected as ‘Minimum NHS Contribution’

2023-25 Revised Scheme types

Number Scheme type/ services Sub type Description
1 Assistive Technologies and Equipment 1. Assistive technologies including telecare Using technology in care processes to supportive self-management,
2. Digital participation services maintenance of independence and more efficient and effective delivery of
3. Community based equipment care. (eg. Telecare, Wellness services, Community based equipment, Digital
-U 4. Other participation services).
g 2 Care Act Implementation Related Duties 1. Independent Mental Health Advocacy Funding planned towards the implementation of Care Act related duties. The
(D 2. Safeguarding specific scheme sub types reflect specific duties that are funded via the NHS
3. Other minimum contribution to the BCF.
m 3 Carers Services 1. Respite Services Supporting people to sustain their role as carers and reduce the likelihood of
m 2. Carer advice and support related to Care Act duties crisis.
3. Other
This might include respite care/carers breaks, information, assessment,
emotional and physical support, training, access to services to support
wellbeing and improve independence.
4 Community Based Schemes 1. Integrated neighbourhood services Schemes that are based in the community and constitute a range of cross
2. Multidisciplinary teams that are supporting independence, such as anticipatory care sector practitioners delivering collaborative services in the community
3. Low level social support for simple hospital discharges (Discharge to Assess pathway 0) typically at a neighbourhood/PCN level (eg: Integrated Neighbourhood
4. Other Teams)
Reablement services should be recorded under the specific scheme type
'Reablement in a person's own home'
5 DFG Related Schemes 1. Adaptations, including statutory DFG grants The DFG is a means-tested capital grant to help meet the costs of adapting a
2. Discretionary use of DFG property; supporting people to stay independent in their own homes.
3. Handyperson services
4. Other The grant can also be used to fund discretionary, capital spend to support
people to remain independent in their own homes under a Regulatory
Reform Order, if a published policy on doing so is in place. Schemes using
this flexibility can be recorded under 'discretionary use of DFG' or
'handyperson services' as appropriate

9z Jo 8T abed



/9 abed

Enablers for Integration

1. Data Integration

2. System IT Interoperability

3. Programme management

4. Research and evaluation

5. Workforce development

6. New governance arrangements

7. Voluntary Sector Business Development
8. Joint commissioning infrastructure

9. Integrated models of provision

10. Other

Schemes that build and develop the enabling foundations of health, social
care and housing integration, encompassing a wide range of potential areas
including technology, workforce, market development (Voluntary Sector
Business Development: Funding the business development and
preparedness of local voluntary sector into provider Alliances/
Collaboratives) and programme management related schemes.

Joint commissioning infrastructure includes any personnel or teams that
enable joint commissioning. Schemes could be focused on Data Integration,
System IT Interoperability, Programme management, Research and
evaluation, Supporting the Care Market, Workforce development,
Community asset mapping, New governance arrangements, Voluntary Sector
Development, Employment services, Joint commissioning infrastructure
amongst others.

High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfer of Care

1. Early Discharge Planning

2. Monitoring and responding to system demand and capacity
3. Multi-Disciplinary/Multi-Agency Discharge Teams supporting discharge
4. Home First/Discharge to Assess - process support/core costs
5. Flexible working patterns (including 7 day working)

6. Trusted Assessment

7. Engagement and Choice

8. Improved discharge to Care Homes

9. Housing and related services

10. Red Bag scheme

11. Other

The eight changes or approaches identified as having a high impact on
supporting timely and effective discharge through joint working across the
social and health system. The Hospital to Home Transfer Protocol or the 'Red
Bag' scheme, while not in the HICM, is included in this section.

Home Care or Domiciliary Care

1. Domiciliary care packages

2. Domiciliary care to support hospital discharge (Discharge to Assess pathway 1)
3. Short term domiciliary care (without reablement input)

4. Domiciliary care workforce development

5. Other

A range of services that aim to help people live in their own homes through
the provision of domiciliary care including personal care, domestic tasks,
shopping, home maintenance and social activities. Home care can link with
other services in the community, such as supported housing, community
health services and voluntary sector services.

Housing Related Schemes

This covers expenditure on housing and housing-related services other than
adaptations; eg: supported housing units.

9Z J0 6T abed



89 abed

10 Integrated Care Planning and Navigation 1. Care navigation and planning Care navigation services help people find their way to appropriate services

2. Assessment teams/joint assessment and support and consequently support self-management. Also, the

3. Support for implementation of anticipatory care assistance offered to people in navigating through the complex health and

4. Other social care systems (across primary care, community and voluntary services
and social care) to overcome barriers in accessing the most appropriate care
and support. Multi-agency teams typically provide these services which can
be online or face to face care navigators for frail elderly, or dementia
navigators etc. This includes approaches such as Anticipatory Care, which
aims to provide holistic, co-ordinated care for complex individuals.
Integrated care planning constitutes a co-ordinated, person centred and
proactive case management approach to conduct joint assessments of care
needs and develop integrated care plans typically carried out by
professionals as part of a multi-disciplinary, multi-agency teams.
Note: For Multi-Disciplinary Discharge Teams related specifically to
discharge, please select HICM as scheme type and the relevant sub-type.
Where the planned unit of care delivery and funding is in the form of
Integrated care packages and needs to be expressed in such a manner,
please select the appropriate sub-type alongside.

11 Bed based intermediate Care Services (Reablement, 1. Bed-based intermediate care with rehabilitation (to support discharge) Short-term intervention to preserve the independence of people who might
rehabilitation in a bedded setting, wider short-term services 2. Bed-based intermediate care with reablement (to support discharge) otherwise face unnecessarily prolonged hospital stays or avoidable
supporting recovery) 3. Bed-based intermediate care with rehabilitation (to support admission avoidance) admission to hospital or residential care. The care is person-centred and

4. Bed-based intermediate care with reablement (to support admissions avoidance) often delivered by a combination of professional groups.
5. Bed-based intermediate care with rehabilitation accepting step up and step down users
6. Bed-based intermediate care with reablement accepting step up and step down users
7. Other
12 Home-based intermediate care services 1. Reablement at home (to support discharge) Provides support in your own home to improve your confidence and ability
2. Reablement at home (to prevent admission to hospital or residential care) to live as independently as possible
3. Reablement at home (accepting step up and step down users)
4. Rehabilitation at home (to support discharge)
5. Rehabilitation at home (to prevent admission to hospital or residential care)
6. Rehabilitation at home (accepting step up and step down users)
7. Joint reablement and rehabilitation service (to support discharge)
8. Joint reablement and rehabilitation service (to prevent admission to hospital or residential care)
9. Joint reablement and rehabilitation service (accepting step up and step down users)
10. Other
13 Urgent Community Response Urgent community response teams provide urgent care to people in their
homes which helps to avoid hospital admissions and enable people to live
independently for longer. Through these teams, older people and adults with
complex health needs who urgently need care, can get fast access to a range
of health and social care professionals within two hours.
14 Personalised Budgeting and Commissioning Various person centred approaches to commissioning and budgeting,

including direct payments.

92 J0 0z abed



69 abed

15 Personalised Care at Home 1. Mental health /wellbeing Schemes specifically designed to ensure that a person can continue to live at
2. Physical health/wellbeing home, through the provision of health related support at home often
3. Other complemented with support for home care needs or mental health needs.
This could include promoting self-management/expert patient,
establishment of ‘home ward’ for intensive period or to deliver support over
the longer term to maintain independence or offer end of life care for
people. Intermediate care services provide shorter term support and care
interventions as opposed to the ongoing support provided in this scheme
type.
16 Prevention / Early Intervention 1. Social Prescribing Services or schemes where the population or identified high-risk groups are
2. Risk Stratification empowered and activated to live well in the holistic sense thereby helping
3. Choice Policy prevent people from entering the care system in the first place. These are
4. Other essentially upstream prevention initiatives to promote independence and
well being.
17 Residential Placements 1. Supported housing Residential placements provide accommodation for people with learning or
2. Learning disability physical disabilities, mental health difficulties or with sight or hearing loss,
3. Extra care who need more intensive or specialised support than can be provided at
4. Care home home.
5. Nursing home
6. Short-term residential/nursing care for someone likely to require a longer-term care home replacement
7. Short term residential care (without rehabilitation or reablement input)
8. Other
18 Workforce recruitment and retention 1. Improve retention of existing workforce These scheme types were introduced in planning for the 22-23 AS Discharge
2. Local recruitment initiatives Fund. Use these scheme decriptors where funding is used to for incentives or
3. Increase hours worked by existing workforce activity to recruit and retain staff or to incentivise staff to increase the
4. Additional or redeployed capacity from current care workers number of hours they work.
5. Other
19 Other Where the scheme is not adequately represented by the above scheme

types, please outline the objectives and services planned for the scheme in a
short description in the comments column.

Scheme type Units

Assistive Technologies and Equipment

Number of beneficiaries

Home Care and Domiciliary Care

Hours of care (Unless short-term in which case it is packages)

Bed Based Intermediate Care Services

Number of placements

Home Based Intermeditate Care Services

Packages

Residential Placements

Number of beds/placements

DFG Related Schemes

Number of adaptations funded/people supported

Workforce Recruitment and Retention

WTE's gained

Carers Services

Beneficiaries

9Z Jo T¢ abed



0/ abed

Better Care Fund 2023-25 Template

6. Metrics for 2023-24

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Warwickshire

8.1 Avoidable admissions

Indicator value

2022-23 Q1
Actual
176.4

2022-23 Q2
Y VE]]
175.6

2022-23 Q3
Actual
194.4

*Q4 Actual not available at time of publication

2022-23 Q4
Plan

Number of

Indirectly standardised rate (ISR) of admissions per Admissions

1,231

1,226

1,357

100,000 population Population

(See Guidance)

Indicator value

577,933

2023-24 Q1
Plan

577,933

2023-24 Q2
Plan

577,933

2023-24 Q3
Plan

577,933

2023-24 Q4
Plan

Rationale for how ambition was set
Current rank of 70th of 152 LA's. Ambition
set to move to upper quartile.

Local plan to meet ambition

The 2023-25 plan includes a range of
admission prevention activities including
increased UCR capacity, enhanced health
interventions and support for care homes
and the introduction of proactive care
workstream. Falls interventions are
outlined below.

>> link to NHS Digital webpage (for more detailed guidance)

Indicator value

2021-22
Actual

2022-23
estimated

2023-24
Plan

Emergency hospital admissions due to falls in
people aged 65 and over directly age standardised

rate per 100,000. Count

Population

2,002.9 1,882.0 1,865.0
2,540 2366 2381
123,463 125709 127644

Rationale for ambition
21-22 rank of 61 of 152 LAs. Ambition to
move to upper quartile.

Local plan to meet ambition
Initiatives planned in 2023-25 include: Falls
assist from floor pilot in WN Place, now
rolled out countywide; Falls response
vehicles; management of falls advice to
care homes; improved links with falls
alarms; falls pick up service and emergency
rising cushions implemented within UCR to
divert from ambulances where there are

Public Health Outcomes Framework - Data - OHID (phe.org.uk)

8.3 Discharge to usual place of residence

Quarter (%)

2022-23 Q1
Actual

2022-23 Q2
Actual
95.6%

2022-23 Q3
Actual

*Q4 Actual not available at time of publication

2021-22 Q4
Plan

Numerator

12,382

Percentage of people, resident in the HWB, who are Denominator
discharged from acute hospital to their normal
place of residence

2023-24 Q1
ET]

12,946

2023-24 Q2
Plan

2023-24 Q3
Plan

2023-24 Q4
Plan

Rationale for how ambition was set
Warwickshire already in upper quartile of
LA's therefore maintenance at the rate of
the best quarter in the year as a stretch
target.

Local plan to meet ambition

Discharge funding will be used to develop
the Community Recovery Service which
aims to return people to their place of
residence via therapeutic intermediate
care within 24 hours of no longer meeting
the criteria to reside. Continued

inuectemeant in dam rare cammiinity

Complete:

Yes

Yes

Yes

92z J0 zz abed


https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/3/gid/1000042/pat/6/par/E12000004/ati/102/are/E06000015/iid/22401/age/27/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions

T/ abed

L sy g
equipment and reablement services
Numerator 12,361 12,489 12,421 12,024 support this metric.

Denominator 12,903 13,037 12,965 12,551

(SUS data - available on the Better Care Exchange) Quarter (%) 95.8% 95.8% 95.8% 95.8%

8.4 Residential Admissions

2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24

Actual Plan estimated Plan Rationale for how ambition was set Local plan to meet ambition
During 2022/23, admissions to residential |2023-25 plans include initiatives to
Annual Rate 558.4 620.5 716.7 705.9|and nursing homes are returning to pre-  [facilitate people living independently at
pandemic levels. Ambition is to maintain |home including further develop
Numerator 677 780 901 901|2022/23 performance in 2023/24. intermediate care pathways, review out of
hospital services and re-commission
Denominator 121,235 125,709 125,709 127,644 community equipment and long term dom

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65
and over) met by admission to residential and
nursing care homes, per 100,000 population

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65 and over) met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population (aged 65+) population projections are based on a calendar year using
the 2018 based Sub-National Population Projections for Local Authorities in England:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based

8.5 Reablement

2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24
Actual Plan  estimated Plan Rationale for how ambition was set Local plan to meet ambition
Aim to maintain current good performance |The introduction of Community Recovery

Annual (%) 95.7% against this metric. Service in pathway 1 through the use of
discharge funding will reduce the pressure
Numerator 352 on the reablement service to support
hospital discarges, releasing capacity to
Denominator 368 focus on preventative activity.

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were
still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital
into reablement / rehabilitation services

Please note that due to the demerging of Cumbria information from previous years will not reflect the present geographies.

As such, the following adjustments have been made for the pre-populated figures above:
- Actuals and plans for Cumberland and Westmorland and Furness are using the Cumbria combined figure for all metrics since a split was not available; Please use comments box to advise.
-2022-23 and 2023-24 population projections (i.e. the denominator for Residential Admissions) have been calculated from a ratio based on the 2021-22 estimates.

9z Jo £¢ abed


https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based

2/ abed

Better Care Fund 2023

7. Confirmation of Plan

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

PR1

Planning Requirement

A jointly developed and agreed plan
that all parties sign up to

Warwickshire

Key considerations for meeting the planning requirement
These are the Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOEs) underpinning the Planning Requirements (PR)

Has a plan; jointly developed and agreed between all partners from ICB(s) in accordance with ICB governance rules, and the LA; been
submitted? Paragraph 11

Has the HWB approved the plan/delegated approval? Paragraph 11

Have local partners, including providers, VCS representatives and local authority service leads (including housing and DFG leads) been

Confirmed through

Expenditure plan

Expenditure plan

Narrative plan

Please confirm
whether your
BCF plan meets
the Planning
Requirement?

Please note any supporting
documents referred to and
relevant page numbers to
assist the assurers

Where the Planning Where the Planning
requirement is not met, requirement is not met,
please note the actionsin  please note the anticipated
place towards meeting the timeframe for meeting it

requirement

funding

Has the area been identified as an area of concern in relation to discharge performance, relating to the 'Delivery plan for recovering
urgent and emergency services'?
If so, have their plans adhered to the additional conditions placed on them relating to performance improvement? Paragraph 51

Is the plan for spending the additonal discharge grant in line with grant conditions?

Narrative and Expenditure plans

involved in the development of the plan? Paragraph 11 Yes Narrative Plan pages 2-4
Where the narrative section of the plan has been agreed across more than one HWB, have individual income, expenditure and metric | Validation of submitted plans
sections of the plan been submitted for each HWB concerned?
Have all elements of the Planning template been completed? Paragraph 12 Expenditure plan, narrative plan
PR2 | A clear narrative for the integration of |Is there a narrative plan for the HW that describes the approach to delivering integrated health and social care that describes: Narrative plan
health, social care and housing
« How the area will continue to implement a joined-up approach to integration of health, social care and housing services including DFG
. " e n ane & & & Pages 6&7,12 & 13,19 and 25-
to support further improvement of outcomes for people with care and support needs Paragraph 13 2
« The approach to joint commissioning Paragraph 13 Pages 10 & 11
NC1: Jointly agreed plan « How the plan will contribute to reducing health inequalities and disparities for the local population, taking account of people with Pages 17-21
protected characteristics? This should include
- How equality impacts of the local BCF plan have been considered Paragraph 14 Yes
- Changes to local priorities related to health inequality and equality and how activities in the document will address these. Paragraph Pages 13-17
14
The area will need to also take into account Priorities and Operational Guidelines regarding health inequalities, as well as local
authorities' priorities under the Equality Act and NHS actions in line with Core20PLUSS. Paragraph 15
PR3 | A strategic, joined up plan for Disabled| Is there confirmation that use of DFG has been agreed with housing authorities? Paragraph 33 Expenditure plan
Facilities Grant (DFG) spending
* Does the narrative set out a strategic approach to using housing support, including DFG funding that supports independence at home? |Narrative plan
Pages 25 to 27.
Paragraph 33
Yes
« In two tier areas, has: Expenditure plan
- Agreement been reached on the amount of DFG funding to be passed to district councils to cover statutory DFG? or
- The funding been passed in its entirety to district councils? Paragraph 34
PR4 A demonstration of how the services | Does the plan include an approach to support improvement against BCF objective 1? Paragraph 16 Narrative plan Pages 20-23.
the area commissions will support
people to remain i for Does the iture plan detail how from BCF sources supports prevention and improvement against this objective? Expenditure plan
NC2: Implementing BCF longer, and where possible support | Paragraph 19
Policy Objective 1: them to remain in their own home Narrative plan
Enabling people to stay Does the narrative plan provide an overview of how overall spend supports improvement against this objective? Paragraph 19 Pages 23-24.
well, safe and Expenditure plan, narrative plan Yes
—— 0 Has the intermediate care capacity and demand planning section of the plan been used to ensure improved performance against this
independent at home objctive and has the narrative plan incorporated learnings from this exercise? Paragraph 66
for longer
PR5 |An agreement between ICBs and Have all partners agreed on how all of the additional discharge funding will be allocated to achieve the greatest impact in terms of Expenditure plan
relevant Local Authorities on how the | reducing delayed discharges? Paragraph 41
additional funding to support .
discharge will be allocated for ASC and | Does the plan indicate how the area has used the discharge funding, particularly in the relation to National Condition 3 (see below), and [Narrative and Expenditure plans 28ES
ity-based in conjunction with wider funding to build additional social care and community-based reablement capacity, maximise the number of
capacity to reduce delayed discharges |hospital beds freed up and deliver sustainable improvement for patients? Paragraph 41
and improve outcomes.
- ’ Does the plan take account of the area's capacity and demand work to identify likely variation in levels of demand over the course of the Pages 21-30
Additional discharge vear and build the workforce capacity needed for additional services? Paragraph 44 Narrative plan Yes

Warwickshire is not an area of
concern. Details of Urgent Care
Development and Urgent
Community Response are
though detailed on pages 18 &
21.

92Z J0 ¢z abed



¢/ obed

PR6 A demonstration of how the services | Does the plan include an approach to how services the area commissions will support people to receive the right care in the right place at|Narrative plan Pages 7 and 27
the area commissions will support [ the right time? Paragraph 21
provision of the right care in the right
place at the right time Does the expenditure plan detail how expenditure from BCF sources supports improvement against this objective? Paragraph 22 Expenditure plan
Does the narrative plan provide an overview of how overall spend supports improvement against this metric and how estimates of Narrative plan Pages 23824
NC3: Implementing BCF capacity and demand have been taken on board (including gaps) and reflected in the wider BCF plans? Paragraph 24
Policy Objective 2: Expenditure plan, narrative plan Intermediate care capacity -
::‘::f::htth;:cgeh:f;: Has the intermediate care capacity and demand planning section of the plan been used to ensure improved performance against this M pages 23&24 and 32 - 34
objective and has the narrative plan incorporated learnings from this exercise? Paragraph 66
right time Expenditure plan
Has the area reviewed their assessment of progress against the High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfers of care and HICM self-assessment on Pages
summarised progress against areas for improvement identified in 2022-23? Paragraph 23 29830
Narrative plan
PR7 | A demonstration of how the area will |Does the total spend from the NHS minimum contribution on social care match or exceed the minimum required lidated on the plan
NC4: Maintaining NHS's maintain the level of spending on Paragraphs 52-55
i social care services from the NHS
el i eelii minimum contribution to the fund in
social care and line with the uplift to the overall Yes
investment in NHS contribution
commissioned out of
hospital services

92Z J0 Gz abed



) abed

PR8  |Is there a confirmation that the Do expenditure plans for each element of the BCF pool match the funding inputs? Paragraph 12 Auto-validated in the expenditure plan
components of the Better Care Fund Expenditure plan
pool that are earmarked for a purpose | Has the area included estimated amounts of activity that will be delivered, funded through BCF funded schemes, and outlined the metrics
are being planned to be used for that |that these schemes support? Paragraph 12
purpose? Expenditure plan
Has the area indicated the percentage of overall spend, where appropriate, that constitutes BCF spend? Paragraph 73
Expenditure plan
Is there confirmation that the use of grant funding is in line with the relevant grant conditions? Paragraphs 25 - 51
. Expenditure plan
Agreed expenditure plan Has an agreed amount from the ICB allocation(s) of discharge funding been agreed and entered into the income sheet? Paragraph 41
for all elements of the Yes
BCF Has the area included a description of how they will work with services and use BCF funding to support unpaid carers? Paragraph 13 Narrative plans, expenditure plan Un-paid Carers - Pages 24-25
Has funding for the following from the NHS contribution been identified for the area:
- Implementation of Care Act duties? Expenditure plan
to . ) = ¢ Care Act - Page 24
- Funding dedicated to carer-specific support?
- Reablement? Paragraph 12 Reablement - 17,23 & 24
PR9 | Does the plan set stretching metrics | Have stretching ambitions been agreed locally for all BCF metrics based on: Expenditure plan
and are there clear and ambitious
lans for delivering these? - current performance (from locally derived and published data
& 3 e ¢ 7 I ) Also refer to Page 28
- local priorities, expected demand and capacity
- planned (particularly BCF funded) services and changes to locally delivered services based on performance to date? Paragraph 59
Metrics Yes
Is there a clear narrative for each metric setting out:
- supporting rationales for the ambition set, Expenditure plan
- plans for achieving these ambitions, and
- how BCF funded services will support this? Paragraph 57

92 J0 9z abed



	Agenda
	2 Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	2.12  The iBCF allocation for 2024/25 has not been published and will be confirmed as part of the wider Local Authority Funding settlement later in 2023. Areas have therefore been advised to plan on the basis that allocations will be consistent with the approach taken in 2023 to 2024 and so no inflationary uplift has been added.
	2.13	The iBCF is temporary.  In order to counter the risk inherent in temporary funding, all new initiatives are temporary or commissioned with exit clauses.  There are, however, a number of areas where the funding is being used to maintain statutory social care spending and this would require replacement funding if the Better Care Fund was removed without replacement.  This risk is noted in Warwickshire County Council’s annual and medium-term financial planning.
	2.14	As in previous years, a Section 75 Legal Agreement will underpin the financial pooling arrangements.  This cannot be signed until our Plan is nationally approved.  In order to avoid under delivery and underspends, schemes and initiatives have to be entered into prior to the legal agreement being signed, but this is no different to previous years.  The intention is that the Section 75 agreement will be drafted so that it can be signed by the partner organisations as soon as approval is granted.
	Appendix 1 for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	Appendix 2 for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	Appendix 2(1)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	1. Guidance

	Appendix 2(2)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	2. Cover

	Appendix 2(3)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	3. Summary

	Appendix 2(4a)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	4. Capacity&Demand

	Appendix 2(4b)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	4. Capacity&Demand

	Appendix 2(5)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	5. Income

	Appendix 2(6)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	6a. Expenditure

	Appendix 2(6b)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	6b. Expenditure guidance

	Appendix 2(7)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	7. Metrics

	Appendix 2(8)  for Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan 2023-2025
	8. Planning Requirements




